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What makes Best World 
one big happy family? 

Quality proven products that 
enhance health? 

A fair and merit-based 
incentive plan that 

rewards high performers? 

Or the high-octane team spirit 
coursing through the organisation?

This annual report explains why, 
at Best World, happiness clearly 

runs in the family.



Vision

To be a leading global health and 
wellness company dedicated to creating 

products that enhance the lives of 
our customers.

Mission

The Preferred Choice for Consumers
We strive to provide health and wellness products of the highest quality and maintain our 

competitive edge through continuous product innovation, embracing advanced R&D technology, 
safeguarding our customer-focused values.

The Premier Choice for Distributors
We will expand our distribution network globally, and establish an entrepreneurial 

platform which offers a unique fi nancially rewarding programme for any individual to pursue 
their fi nancial freedom with Best World.

The Best Choice for Partners
We aim to develop and maintain long-term relationships with our customers, business 

partners, distributors, staff and shareholders based on integrity and trust. We are committed 
to developing a positive, harmonious and respectable working community and our continual 

investment in their development will keep our distributors and staff motivated, improving 
productivity and effi ciency, thereby maximising our shareholders’ value.



Family Values

Harmony
We advocate a balanced lifestyle 
because we believe that wellness can 
only be optimised through physical, 
emotional and spiritual harmony.

Integrity
We value truthfulness and sincerity above 
all else and are always ready to be held 
accountable for our products and actions.

Positivism
We are grateful for whatever life 
brings and look forward to creating 
new possibilities everyday knowing 
that every dawn unveils a better day.

Community
Our people and customers drive 
our existence. We see all as one 
family interconnected with shared 
aspirations and a common destiny.



FY2005 Financial Overview
In S$’M    FY2003 FY2004 FY2005 

Revenue    17.1 31.0 55.0 
Gross Profi t    12.7 24.1 42.9  
GPM (%)    74.3% 77.7% 78.0% 
PBT    3.7 6.8 11.8 
PBT margin    21.6% 21.9% 21.5% 
Net Profi t    3.1 5.0 8.5
Net Profi t margin    18.1% 16.3% 15.4% 
EPS (cents)    2.98 3.36 5.50 
Div Per Share (cents)    – 0.8 2.6 
Operating Cash Flow (S$’M)    3.6 4.8 5.6

FY2005 Financial Results – Segmental Breakdown
Activity Segment
  FY2003  FY2004  FY2005
 $’000 % $’000 % S$’000 %

Direct Selling 15,475 90.6 29,872   96.3  54,290   98.5  

Retail  399 2.3  299   1.0 176   0.3 

Export 1,211 7.1  836   2.7  632   1.2  

 17,085 100.0 31,007   100.0 55,098   100.0  

Geographical Segment
Singapore 12,894 75.5 17,754   57.3  17,987   32.7
Malaysia 3,876 22.7 10,705   34.5  22,971   41.7 
Indonesia 0 0  2,004  6.4  12,963   23.5 
Others 315 1.8  544  1.8  1,177   2.1 
 17,085 100.0  31,007   100.0  55,098   100.0

Financial Highlights
Revenue (S$’M) Profit before Tax (S$’M) Net Profit (S$’M)
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Membership by Geographical Segment (in thousands)

Revenue by Geographical

Growth of Centres
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Founders’ Message

Dr Dora Hoan
Group Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 

Dr Doreen Tan 
Chairman & Group Executive Director
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Dear Shareholders,

Happy Greetings!
On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased 

to present the annual report of Best World International 

Limited (‘Best World’ or the ‘Company’) for the fi nancial 

year ended 31 December 2005 (‘FY2005’).

The theme for our Annual Report this year is 

‘Happy’. The reason we chose ‘Happy’ is because 

2005 has been a harvest year for Best World. At the 

same time, we also experienced positive growth in 

all areas. 

Happiness is very much a part of our brand culture. 

When you call in to our company in the morning, a 

cheerful voice will greet you with a “Happy Morning!”. 

This has been part of the company’s culture since 

Best World was set up 15 years ago. This is because 

we believe happiness is the Nirvana that everyone is 

searching for. 

On top of this, we also inculcate our board values 

of Harmony, Integrity, Positivism and Community to 

establish a team with a strong sense of objectives and 

belonging based on these fundamental values. 

And when our team members continue to enrich 

themselves, we are able to live life at its best and 

inevitably attain Happiness. 

Happy Growth
The year in review was a happy, eventful, and 

fulfi lling one. The Company ended the year with a 

shareholders’ equity base of S$28.8 million, a gain 

of 108.4% compared to FY2004. We were ranked the 

second best performing stock in SGX-ST in terms 

of percentage gain as our market capitalisation 

grew from S$25.6 million to S$113 million as at 31 

December 2005. A shareholder who bought into our 

stock at the point of our IPO would have reaped a 

return of 234% in capital gain. 

Notwithstanding that Best World has recorded 

a four-fold jump in its profi tability over the past fi ve 

years, we are also excited about developing our young 

talents to continue to work harder to achieve higher 

growth in the future.

2005 was a watershed year in that Best World 

spread its wings in the region, spearheading a rapid 

expansion into regional markets like Malaysia, Indo-

nesia, Thailand, Vietnam and Hong Kong. Today, we 

have nine Regional Centres  (RCs), 37 Lifestyle Centres 

(LCs) in more than ten cities in fi ve countries. 

Happy Highlights:
• In July 2005, we moved into new corporate head-

quarters at Toa Payoh HDB Hub, a spacious 

12,500 square feet offi ce which also serves as 

our training and distribution centre. Located within 

walking distance of Toa Payoh’s MRT station, our 

members welcomed the move as the offi ce is now 

so much more accessible to them. 

• In March 2005, we set up a RC in Kuala Lumpur, 

Malaysia. This was in response to strong con-

sumer spending and favourable regional economic 

conditions that continue to drive demand for our 

products. We believe that our Malaysian operations 

will continue to be the star performer in 2006. 

• Our brand new Indonesian RC was also completed 

in September 2005. Indonesia contributed S$13 

million, or 23.5% of FY2005 sales. With better 

infrastructure support, sales in Indonesia are 

expected to improve progressively in FY2006.

• The completion of our ‘Vigor’ acquisition for 16 

product licenses in September 2005 will enable 

Best World to explore the PRC consumer market.

Happiness is very much a part of our brand culture. 
When you call in to our company in the morning, a 
cheerful voice will greet you with a “Happy Morning!”. 
This has been part of the company’s culture since Best 
World was set up 15 years ago. This is because we believe 
happiness is the Nirvana that everyone is searching for. 
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• The Company placed out a total of 15 million new 

shares to sophisticated investors and institutions. 

This placement exercise has provided the Group 

with the necessary funds to pursue the next stage 

of growth in new regional markets. 

 

Reviewing our business – 
Spreading our wings regionally

2005 saw Best World increasing its presence in 

the region. Our expansion into these markets has 

yielded excellent results for the Group. In particular, 

as a result of the Company’s efforts to focus on our 

key competence in direct selling, we achieved turnover 

of more than S$54.3 million. 

2005 also saw the establishment of two new 

RCs and eight new LCs. It also saw our penetration 

into new markets like Vietnam and Hong Kong. The 

estimated total population of the markets that we 

operate in exceeds 60 million and with an average 

GDP growth of 4-6% in 2005. While the immense 

potential of these markets is exciting, we need to 

guard against potential pitfalls along the way. Hence, 

we have chosen to be careful in our approach to 

penetrate these markets. 

After months of waiting, completing the ‘Vigor’ 

acquisition in China this past September was indeed 

good news. 16 product licenses were secured for RMB 

18 million, providing us with the basic requirement to 

initiate our direct selling campaign in the future. As 

we prepare ourselves to apply for our direct selling 

license, the Company is in an excellent position to ride 

on China’s strong rising tide of consumerism. 

On the whole, the direct selling segment remains 

the largest revenue contributor accounting for 98.5% 

or S$54.3 million of the Group’s revenue. The strong 

performance is attributable to a 52.4% increase in 

our active member base from 45,000 in FY2004 to 

68,577 in FY2005. This provided a major boost to the 

demand for the Group’s lines of skincare, nutritional 

and lifestyle products. We will launch more recruitment 

drives to further strengthen our membership base in 

2006. We expect this to have a positive impact on 

both top and bottom lines.

3Ps Strategy
In particular, our strategy for the future is encap-

sulated in what we call the 3Ps Strategy: 

• Products From the fi rst day, we have consistently 

advised our shareholders that we were a product-

focused company devoted to introducing quality 

products to the public.

• Plan At Best World, we recognise the importance 

of implementing a fair and realisable incentive 

system designed to help our distributors fulfi ll 

their personal goals of financial freedom. An 

Enterprise Network Programme (ENP) plan has 

been established to allow any individual to reach 

his or her goal in a situation where there are no 

geographical boundaries and the sky is the limit; 

the better to discover the joy of achieving Physi-
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cal, Financial, Emotional and Social Health and, 

so, to live life at its best.

• People We believe our greatest asset is our 

People. We go to great lengths to train both our 

distributors and staff; to equip them with the 

best knowledge about the products, the industry 

and about themselves, so that they are better 

able to spread information about the benefi ts of 

our products and our business to their friends 

and relatives.

Products
At Best World, we believe in building a long lasting 

brand. During the year, strategic marketing campaigns 

to promote our products and increase brand awareness 

were carried out in the print, outdoor advertisements 

and TV media. More campaigns will be conducted 

over the coming months. 

Last year, we informed you that we would be 

launching weight management products in 2005. We 

are pleased to advise that our weight management 

line of products ‘Optrimax’ has received a positive 

response from our members. By 31 December 2005, 

Optrimax had already accounted for 8.6% of our 

FY2005 revenue.

DR’s Secret/DR’s Seager continues to be our 

star product, accounting for 75% of our FY2005 

revenue. This brand has now become a reliable series 

of skincare products that is well-received in all our 

regional markets. 

We will be rolling out more innovative and exciting 

new products in 2006. First, we will be promoting our 

Negative Ionizer, an innovative lifestyle equipment 

that improves blood circulation and health through 

negative ions – the key factor behind natural air. More 

new products are in the pipeline and we will update 

you as we progress.

Growing our business – the People Factor
Best World continues to be blessed with a group 

of very experienced managers. We are frequently 

asked, “What is the best piece of advice you have 

ever given your managers?”. Our answer is simple 

– to be a winner, you must work with winners. Talented 

people are always welcome at Best World with open 

arms. We do not turn away capable people for fear 

that they might outshine us. Technological advance-

ments have not eroded our belief that people are still 

our greatest asset. All our people have a common 

trait: They are winners and they have chosen to work 

with winners.

Key factors of our success in this industry includes 

motivation and training. With our brand new Regional 

Headquarters (RHQ) set up, we are well-equipped 

with advanced facilities to train our people. Last year, 

we embarked upon our own People Developer plan, 

a system which will groom and train our talents for 

the future. We have also introduced this successful 

training system to our distributors. A professional team 

of training consultants was brought in to share our 
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experience and knowledge, which they have compiled 

into a training manual to assist our regional offi ces.

Strengthening our fi nancial position
At Best World, we believe the Company needs to 

be a fortress of fi nancial strength. We tend to take a 

very careful stance in our regional expansion strategy, 

our membership recruitment drive and use of working 

capital. We believe that every dollar we raise from the 

public should be subjected to minimum risk while 

generating maximum returns.

During our IPO in 2004, we raised approximately 

S$6.4 million in net proceeds. Last year, we tapped 

the equity market for S$8.3 million in preparation for 

our future expansion plans. We are pleased to advise 

that several prominent institutional funds have bought 

the Company’s shares during the past 12 months. As 

the Company grows, we believe we will continue to 

attract more of such quality investors. 

Our foreign subsidiaries operate in jurisdictions 

which impose higher corporate tax rates. Higher 

revenue from these subsidiaries has exposed them 

to higher tax expenses, contributing to an increase 

of group income tax expense from S$1.5 million to 

S$2.8 million. While net profi t still increased from 68% 

to S$8.5 million, net margin was 15.4% primarily due 

to higher tax expenses incurred. 

Net cash fl ow from operating activities remains 

very healthy, improving 16.2% to S$5.6 million due 

to better working capital management. Our cash 

reserves for the year ending 31 December 2005 

stood at S$19 million, up almost 103.9% from S$9.3 

million last year. 

Outlook for FY2006 – 
Well-positioned for growth 

Having completed the Vigor Acquisition, the Group 

is in a good position to explore its business opportuni-

ties in the PRC market in the current fi nancial year. 

The opening of our Hong Kong RC in third quarter 

of 2006 will spearhead the marketing initiatives for 

the Hong Kong and Macau markets. Another LC is 

expected to open in Causeway Bay by April 2006.

The Group will complete the incorporation of its 

Taiwan subsidiary and expects it to be operational 

by end 2006. With this new subsidiary, Best World 

intends to continue strengthening its presence in the 

key geographical markets.

The Group has submitted to EDB Singapore its 

application for RHQ status. Upon being granted RHQ 

status, the Group will be entitled tax incentives. This is 

one of the few measures the Group is taking to optimise 

our tax rates to further improve net profi t.

Corporate Governance
Good corporate governance is not just about hav-

ing the best set of standard operating procedures, or 

complying with the codes and rules. Rather, it is about 

having substance over form, and above all, ethics and 

integrity. Upholding the principle of good corporate 

governance underscores a company’s philosophy 

that maintains a leading position in the market and 

commands respect amongst its peers.

In our move to encourage greater transparency and 

accountability, we continue to work hard for our share-

holders by providing timely and accurate information 

through announcements and public relations activities.

We will be rolling out more innovative and 
exciting new products in 2006. First, we will 
be promoting our Negative Ionizer, an innovative 
lifestyle equipment that improves blood circulation 
and health through negative ions – the key factor 
behind natural air. More new products are in the 
pipeline and we will update you as we progress.
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In 2005, we participated in several investors’ 

seminars like the Securities Investor Association of 

Singapore (SIAS) Companies’ Presentation and the 

Westcomb IPO Gems Presentation. Such activities 

allow us to interact more with our shareholders and 

investors who are keen to know more about the 

Company. We will continue to participate in seminars 

of a similar nature to increase public awareness of 

Best World. 

Acknowledgements
We take this opportunity to extend our heartfelt 

appreciation to the management team and staff for 

their unwavering contribution to the growth of the 

company; to our vendors, business associates and 

customers for their loyal support through the years; 

and to the Board of Directors for their wise counsel 

and guidance.

Happy Returns
To celebrate the good results, the Directors de-

cided to issue a tax exempt one-tier interim dividend 

of 1.0 cent per share during the half-year results an-

nouncement. For the full year results, the directors 

will propose a fi nal tax-exempt dividend of 0.6 cents 

per share and a special tax-exempt dividend of 1.0 

cent per share. Coupled with the interim dividend of 

1.0 cent, this represents a dividend payout of 48.9% 

of FY2005 net profi t.

We hope you will continue to support Best World 

as we chart our growth into 2006.

Finally, we look forward to meeting you at the 

upcoming shareholders’ meeting that will be held on 

25 April 2006 in Best World’s Corporate Headquarters 

at Toa Payoh. On that special day, you can sign up as 

our bwL member at no charge to enjoy the privilege 

of purchasing our quality products at a Distributor 

price. This is a token of our appreciation to you, our 

shareholders, for the faith and confi dence that you 

have shown in the Company. In order to enjoy the 

privilege, kindly identify yourself as a shareholder to 

our staff using your meeting credentials. 

Yours faithfully,

Dr Dora Hoan Dr Doreen Tan
Group Managing Director &  Chairman & 

Chief Executive Offi cer  Group Executive Director 

Good corporate governance is not just about 
having the best set of standard operating 
procedures, or complying with the codes and 
rules. Rather, it is about having substance 
over form, and above all, ethics and integrity. 
Upholding the principle of good corporate 
governance underscores a company’s phi-
losophy that maintains a leading position 
in the market and commands respect 
amongst its peers.
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Products +
We are a product-focused company devoted to introducing quality 

products, which aims to be the solution to enrich our consumers’ lives, 

because we believe strongly that a healthy person is a happier person.

Our 3Ps Strategy
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Plan
We believe motivation is the key factor 

to successful entrepreneurship. There-

fore, we provide a platform for members 

to pursue their dream and fulfi ll their 

personal goal of attaining fi nancial free-

dom through our Enterprise Network 

Programme. This fair and realisable 

incentive system will allow anyone to 

build their businesses where there are 

no geographical boundaries and the 

sky is the limit; the better to discover 

the joy of achieving Physical, Financial, 

Emotional and Social Health and so, to 

live life at its best.

+ People
We believe our greatest asset is our People. We go to 

great lengths to train our distributors and staff; to equip 

them with the best knowledge about the products, the 

right professional attitude and about themselves, so that 

they are better able to perform their careers, and at the 

same time, cultivate a happy working environment where 

morales are high within the Best World family.
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Avance
Avance is a premium health brand 

that believes in the possibility of total 

healthy living by adopting a preventive 

well-being approach. The brand is 

suitable for the busy individual who 

treasures a true, balanced concept 

of living.

bwL
Building on three main guarantees 

– effi cacy, purity and concentration 

– bwL’s range of innovative, pat-

ented products is noted for its unique 

formulae. It is created with the inten-

tion of bringing forth nothing less 

than the best of health and well-be-

ing in our consumers’ entire family.

Optrimax
Optrimax is a fun, healthy and effec-

tive weight management programme 

that helps adults, even vegetarians, 

achieve a healthier and slimmer body. 

Our four quality products – Plum Del-

ite, Meal Replacement Bar, Congee 

Delite and Anti-Cellulite Gel – are so 

light and delite-ful! You’ll be smiling 

well before the programmed weeks 

are fi nished!

LifeHarmony
We believe that to feel good about ourselves, we need to balance our physical 
wellness with a healthy lifestyle and environment. Our LifeHarmony approach 
focuses on transforming our customers through three integral aspects of 
wellness: Inner Harmony, Outer Harmony, and Lifestyle Harmony.

Inner Harmony 
Our health depends on the 
food we consume. Yet, in 

today’s world, our diets often 
lack the nutrients needed to 
keep us in the pink of health. 
Our nutritional supplement 
and weight management 

products give your body vital 
natural nutrients and help you 

stay in shape and optimum 
health. The result: you always 

remain energetic, radiant, 
positive and happy.
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DR’s Secret/DR’s Seager
Formulated with the latest dermato-

logical and nutritional science advan-

ces, our skincare products cater to 

skin enhancement and treatment. 

The range includes cleansers, ton-

ers, moisturisers, anti-ageing cream, 

pimple cream and skin-lightening 

formulas. DR’s Secret/DR’s Seager 

guarantees, to give your skin a 

healthy, lustrous appearance and 

youthful glow that will be the envy 

of your friends.

PureFlo
Our premier tap-mounting ultra-fi ltra-

tion water system has a fi ltering capa-

bility of up to 0.015 micron meter unit 

which effectively removes any possible 

trace of impurities, bacteria and even 

viruses from your tap water.

bwL Negative Ionizer
Launched in December 2005, the bwL 

Negative Ionizer brings the goodness 

of negative ions to you. Compact and 

lightweight, it has been elegantly 

designed for both home and offi ce. 

Its innovative technology allows it to 

produce higher amounts of negative 

ions than other conventional air puri-

fi ers on the market.

Outer Harmony
Our confi dence is often 

affected by how well we feel 

and look. Yet, without care, our 

skins usually succumb to the 

wear and tear of age. Our skin-

care and personal care prod-

ucts restore and recondition 

your skin, transforming it to 

reveal your natural beauty.

Lifestyle Harmony
We live in a polluted environ-

ment. Be it the air we breathe 

or the water we consume, we 

are exposed to elements that 

can harm our well-being. Our 

healthcare equipment is spe-

cially developed to protect you 

from the impurities of our 

environment and lead you 

towards a healthy lifestyle.
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Dr Dora Hoan
Group Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Dr Hoan is one of the founders of the Group. With 

almost 30 years of experience in direct selling opera-

tions and a strong academic background in business 

management, she has a Ph.D in Business Administra-

tion from Western Pacifi c University, USA.

She is responsible for charting the Group’s stra-

tegic and business planning. She also oversees the 

Group’s Human Resource Management and Market-

ing System and is involved in its public relations. As 

a corporate leader, she is very active in social and 

community work, serving leadership roles in various 

associations and grassroots organisations.

She was President of the Association of Small 

and Medium Enterprises from 2001 to 2002. She is 

also the founder of the Singapore Promising Brand 

Award and has been its chairman since 2002. She is 

the Vice-Chairman for the Direct Selling Association 

Singapore in 2005, Radin Mas CCC and Tanjong 

Pagar Town Councillors, as well as the President of 

the Xiyao Cultural Association.

Dr Doreen Tan 
Chairman & Group Executive Director

Dr Tan is one of the founders of the Group. With 

30 years experience in this industry, she has a rich 

professional knowledge of nutrition and dermatology. 

Back Row (from left): Huang Ban Chin, Lee Teck Leng Robson and Ravindran s/o Ramasamy.
Seated (from left): Dr Dora Hoan, Dr Doreen Tan and Lee Sen Choon.

Board of Directors
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She holds a degree in Applied Nutrition from the 

American Academy of Nutrition and an Honorary Ph.D 

from Kennedy Western University, USA.

She heads all product-related functions in the 

company such as product development and product 

training. As the company’s product specialist, she 

has a strong belief in holistic health and imparts her 

experience through seminar trainings and counsel-

ling services. 

She was the guest speaker at the ‘Nurturing 

Children Seminar’ in October 2005 organised by 

LianHe WanBao and was also a contributor to the 

newspaper’s bi-annual health publication, ‘A Guide 

to Well Being in 2005’.

Huang Ban Chin
Executive Director

Mr Huang is responsible for the execution of 

the Group’s business expansion plans and product 

development. He is also in charge of overseeing the 

Group’s day to day operations, marketing activities 

for retail and export channels, corporate fi nancial 

management and plays a pivotal role in developing 

Best World’s brand name into the region. 

Mr Huang is a biochemist and microbiologist by 

training, with 15 years of experience in the direct selling 

and healthy lifestyle industries. Upon graduating from 

the National University of Singapore in 1992 with a 

Bachelor of Science degree, he joined the Group as 

its marketing manager. 

Mr Huang was promoted to the position of Director 

in 1994 and assumed his current position as Executive 

Director in 2003.

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy
Independent Director

As a director in the law fi rm of Straits Law Practice 

LLC, Mr Ravindran has been in practice for more than 19 

years. Though he specialises in banking and corporate 

law, his wide experience in the law includes criminal and 

civil litigation. Mr Ravindran obtained a LLB (Hons) from 

NUS in 1985, and a Masters in Law (LLM) from NUS 

in 1991. He is a member of Parliament for the Marine 

Parade Group Representative Constituency.

Lee Sen Choon
Independent Director

Mr Lee is currently a partner of Lee Seng Chan & 

Co., a public accounting fi rm in Singapore. With more 

than 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing, 

taxation and corporate secretarial work, Mr Lee is 

the Treasurer of the Board of Directors of Singapore 

Chinese High School, a member of the Board of 

Governors of Hwa Chong Institution and the School 

Advisory Committee of Xingnan Primary School. 

Mr Lee is also a member of the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and a 

practising member of the Institute of Certifi ed Public 

Accountants of Singapore. In addition, Mr Lee sits 

on the boards of several publicly listed companies 

as an independent director. 

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree (Hons) 

from the then Nanyang University and has a post-

graduate diploma in Management Studies from the 

University of Saltford, United Kingdom.

Lee Teck Leng Robson
Non-Executive Director

Mr Lee is a practising lawyer with more than 10 years 

of experience in capital markets and corporate fi nance 

legal work. Currently an equity partner in the law fi rm of 

Shook Lin & Bok, he is also a partner in the fi rm’s China 

practice, focusing on cross-border corporate, fi nance and 

capital markets transactions in that country. 

Mr Lee is the Secretary of the Board of Governors 

of Hwa Chong Institution and Hwa Chong International 

School, as well as a trustee of the land on which the two 

schools are situated. He also sits on a number of publicly 

listed companies as an independent director. 

He is actively involved in various community and 

charity events, and is a member of the Feedback 

Supervisory Panel. 

With effect from 15 March 2005, Mr Lee was 

appointed an independent director of the Group. He 

was also appointed chairman of the Group’s Remu-

neration Committee.
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Koh Hui
Group Finance Manager 

Ms Koh is responsible for the Group’s accounting 

and fi nancial reporting, including tax, budgeting and 

investor relations. She is a Certifi ed Public Account-

ant with the Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants 

of Singapore and holds a Bachelor of Accountancy 

from Nanyang Technological University of Singapore. 

Prior to joining the Group in 2003, she was a senior 

auditor with Ernst and Young.

Koh Koon Choo Jean
Senior Regional Network Manager 

Ms Koh leads the Regional Network Department 

which is primarily responsible for co-ordinating and 

monitoring activities and accounts of our members 

in our Enterprise Network Programme. She also 

oversees the development of, and provides necessary 

support to, our overseas subsidiaries in the region. 

She has been with the Group since 1991.

 

Back Row (from left): Lu Shih Chieh Jerry, Koh Koon Choo Jean and Goh Pei Chen Sandra.
First Row (from left): Ho Li Min Joe, Koh Hui, Cheh Foong Kuan Katherine, Leong Wai Hun Jorina and Pengo Chow.

Key Management
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Lu Shih Chieh Jerry
Country Manager, Singapore,
Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd

Mr Lu fi rst joined the Group in July 1995 as a 

marketing manager. In his current role as the Country 

Manager of Best World Lifestyle Singapore, he is 

responsible for overseeing the direct selling activities 

of sales affi liates, distributor relationships and the 

day-to-day operations. He graduated from the Curtin 

University of Technology in Perth, Western Australia with 

a Bachelor of Commerce (Information Systems). 

Cheh Foong Kuan Katherine
Country Manager, Malaysia,
Best World Lifestyle Sdn Bhd

Ms Cheah is responsible for overseeing the 

business development of the Malaysia subsidiary. 

Specifi cally, she oversees cost effectiveness, effi ciency, 

profi tability, distributor satisfaction and the day-to-day 

operations. She has been with the Group since 1999 

and has more than 20 years experience in the direct 

selling industry. 

Pengo Chow
Country Manager, Hong Kong,
Best World Lifestyle (HK) Company Limited 

Mr Chow is responsible for the development of 

the Hong Kong market. His responsibilities include 

product registration and overseeing the direct selling 

activities of sales affi liates, distributor relationships and 

the day-to-day operations. He holds an MBA from the 

University of Birmingham and is currently studying for 

his Doctor of Business Administration at the University 

of Newcastle. He is a Chartered Marketer and a member 

of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK as well as 

the Institute of Management, UK. Before joining the 

Group, he had over 12 years of senior management 

and business development experience in the skin 

care, health and pharmaceutical sectors.

Leong Wai Hun Jorina
IT Manager 

Ms Leong leads the development and main-

tenance of an integrated and centrally-managed 

communications network infrastructure that lever-

ages on the Group’s scale and scope to improve its 

effi ciency for both the Group and distributors. She is a 

Microsoft Certifi ed Engineer and has been with the 

Group since 1997.

Ho Li Min Joe
Marketing Communications Manager 

Ms Ho is responsible for the Group’s overall 

marketing to raise public awareness of our activi-

ties. Her responsibilities include brand management, 

advertising and promotions. She has over 10 years 

of experience in the marketing and promotion of 

lifestyle products in the direct selling industry. She 

holds a Bachelor of Science from the National Taiwan 

University and a Graduate Diploma in Marketing from 

the Marketing Institute of Singapore. She joined the 

Group in 2003. 

Goh Pei Chen Sandra
Human Resource Manager/ 
Personal Assistant to Group CEO 

Ms Goh is responsible for the Group’s human 

resources. She ensures that workforce development 

is aligned with the corporate culture and strategic 

directions of the Company. She also assists the 

Group CEO on all matters. She holds a Bachelor of 

Business Administration from RMIT and has been 

with the Group since 2004.
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BWI (A)

70%

BWLSB (C)

100%

BWL (D)

70%

BWC (B)

100%

IBWL (E)

49%

BWL TH (F)

100%

AV (G)

100%

BWL HK (H)

70%

BW ID (I)

100%

BWL SH (J)

Family Tree

A Best World International Limited
B Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd.
C Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.
D Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd
E Institute of BWL Pte. Ltd.

F BWL (Thailand) Company Limited
G Avance Living Pte. Ltd.
H Best World Lifestyle (HK) Company Limited
I PT Best World Indonesia
J Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

 Group Structure Legend
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Best World International Limited
Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd
Institute of BWL Pte. Ltd.
480 Toa Payoh Lorong 6

HDB Hub East Wing

#15-00

Singapore 310480

Tel: (65) 6899 0088

Fax: (65) 6748 7970

Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd
Ang Mo Kio Branch

Blk 726 Ang Mo Kio Ave 6

#01-4150

Singapore 560726

Tel: (65) 6459 7288

Fax: (65) 6455 7277

Bugis Branch

390 Victoria Street

Golden Landmark

#03-28

Singapore 188061

Tel: (65) 6348 9949

Fax: (65) 6396 8670

Jurong Branch

Blk 353 Jurong East St 31

#01-105

Singapore 640353

Tel: (65) 6560 8884

Fax: (65) 6567 3343

Avance Living Pte. Ltd.
37 Kallang Pudding Road

Block B Tong Lee Building

#05-03/04

Singapore 349315

Tel: (65) 6749 2551

Fax: (65) 6479 5195

Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.
No. 11 Jalan Radin Anum

Bandar Baru, Sri Petaling 

57000 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 9057 1133

Fax: (60) 3 9057 2158

JB Branch

141 Jalan Danga Taman Nusa Bestari Dua 

81300 Johor Bahru Malaysia 

Tel: (607) 557 5575

Fax: (607) 556 3617

BWL (Thailand) Company Limited
Unit 18A, Forum Tower

184 Rachadapisek Road

Huay Kwang 

10320 Bangkok Thailand

Tel: (66) 2 645 3298

Fax: (66) 2 645 3795

PT Best World Indonesia
Mayapada Tower 8th Floor

Suite 0802A 

Jalan Jendral Sudirman Kav 28

Jakarta 12920 Indonesia

Tel: (62) 21 521 3566

Fax: (62) 21 252 5147

Best World Lifestyle (HK) 
Company Limited
Room 1402-03, 14/F

Causeway Bay Plaza 1

489 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay 

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 9062 1678

21
Best World Annual Report 2005



Corporate Information
Board of Directors
Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi

Huang Ban Chin

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Lee Sen Choon

Lee Teck Leng Robson

Company Secretary
Low Mei Mei Maureen

Registered Offi ce & Business Address
480 Toa Payoh Lorong 6

HDB Hub East Wing

#15-00

Singapore 310480

Tel: (65) 6899 0088

Fax: (65) 6748 7970

www.bestworld.com.sg

Share Registrar & Share Transfer Offi ce
Tricor Barbinder Share Registration Services

(A division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.)

8 Cross Street #11-00

PWC Building

Singapore 048424

Auditors
RSM Chio Lim 

Certifi ed Public Accountants

18 Cross Street

#08-01 Marsh & McLennan Centre

Singapore 048423

Partner-in-Charge
Goh Swee Hong

Principal Bankers
United Overseas Bank Ltd

80 Raffl es Place UOB Plaza 1

Singapore 049513

DBS Bank Ltd

6 Shenton Way

DBS Building Tower Two

Singapore 068809

Audit Committee
Chairman

Lee Sen Choon

Members

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Lee Teck Leng Robson

 

Nominating Committee
Chairman

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Members

Lee Sen Choon

Lee Teck Leng Robson

Remuneration Committee
Chairman

Lee Teck Leng Robson

Members

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Lee Sen Choon

Subsidiaries
100%

Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd

Avance Living Pte. Ltd.

Institute of BWL Pte. Ltd.

Best World Lifestyle (HK) Company Limited

70%

Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd

Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd

Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.

PT Best World Indonesia

49% 

BWL (Thailand) Company Limited
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Financial Calendar
2005
19 February 2005
Announcement of Full Year Results for 

Financial Year ended 31 December 2004

18 April 2005
Annual General Meeting

6 May 2005
Books Closure Date

8 July 2005
Incorporation of Best World Lifestyle

(HK) Company Limited

28 July 2005
Announcement of Half Year Results for

Financial Period ended 30 June 2005

5 September 2005
Completion of ‘Vigor’ Acquisition 

in China

9 September 2005
Grand Opening of New Regional Headquarters

in HDB Hub Toa Payoh Singapore

29 September 2005
Incorporation of PT Best World Indonesia

3 October 2005
Placement of 15 million New 

Ordinary Shares

2006
15 February 2006
Announcement of Full Year Results for

Financial Year ended 31 December 2005

16 February 2006
Results Briefi ng

25 April 2006
Annual General Meeting 

9 May 2006
Books Closure Date

27 July 2006
Announcement of Half Year Results for

Financial Period ended 30 June 2006

14 February 2007
Announcement of Full Year Results for 

Financial Year ended 31 December 2006
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Overview
2005 was defi ned by a number of key events. 

The incorporation of the Indonesia and Hong Kong 

subsidiaries, the relocation and opening of a brand 

new Regional Headquarters in Central Singapore, the 

opening of 16 new Lifestyle Centres (LCs) around the 

regions and the introduction and extension of new 

product lines – these were all strong factors that 

helped improved our membership base.

The Group continued to make solid progress dur-

ing FY2005 extending our presence into six markets 

in the Asia Pacifi c region. Sound business strategies 

and the successful execution of our market expansion 

plans, coupled with a fi rm footing in our core markets 

helped the Group to reinforce its position as one of the 

leading direct selling companies in Asia Pacifi c.

Share Price Performance
Best World shares rose 234.1% between 1 January 

2005 and 31 December 2005. The share price closed 

at 68.5 cents on 31 December 2005.

Contribution by Activities
The direct selling business remains the Group’s 

main revenue contributor, accounting for approximately 

98.5% or $54.3 million of total revenue. The strong 

81.7% growth in revenue was largely attributed to grow-

ing demands for our line of products. The Retail and 

Export segments both registered a decline in revenue 

contribution as the Group channelled its resources 

mainly into the direct selling segment.

The Group’s membership base grew by 52.4% 

from 45,000 in FY2004 to 68,577 in FY2005. The 

signifi cant growth in membership base was centered 

on the Malaysian and Indonesian markets.

Contribution by Geographical Markets
FY2005 was a watershed year during which the 

Group extended its presence into new markets like 

Vietnam and Hong Kong. Currently, the Group has 

business operations in more than six major markets 

namely, Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, 

Hong Kong and Vietnam. Revenue growth was broad-

based and driven by strong customer demand for 

the Group’s lifestyle products. Singapore contributed 

$17.9 million or 32.7% of the total revenue, while 

Malaysia surpassed Singapore as the top contributor, 

posting a 114.6% increase in sales from $10.7 million 

to $23.0 million. Malaysia now accounts for 41.7% 

of the Group’s total revenue. Indonesia was the star 

performer with a 546.9% surge in sales to $13.0 million 

in FY2005. The Group’s strategies for making inroads 

into Thailand and Hong Kong reaped rewards as both 

markets reported combined revenue of $1.1 million 

in FY2005, almost a three-fold increase.

The 1.3% increase in revenue contribution from 

Singapore may look fl at. This was because in the fi rst 

half of FY2004, Indonesia’s sales were categorised 

under Singapore. As the Indonesian distributors are 

permanent residents of Singapore, we are not able to 

segregate the revenue contributed by the Indonesian 

market from the Singapore’s revenue. In the second 

half of FY2004, the Group decided to categorise the 

Indonesian’s sales under Indonesia; this was due to 

Operations Review

0.8

22/02/05

0.6

0.4

0.2

23/04/05 23/06/05 23/08/05 23/10/05 23/12/05

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.1

Last Done
20D MA
50D MA

Historical Price with Moving Average

0.8

22/02/05

0.6

0.4

0.2

23/04/05 23/06/05 23/08/05 23/10/05 23/12/05

Last Done

STI

Price versus STI

24
Best World Annual Report 2005



Financial Ratios
 FY2005 FY2004 FY2003
 Dec Dec Dec

Adjusted EPS ($) 0.05130 0.03054 0.01808
(Earnings/Latest No. of Shares)

Adjusted NAV ($) 0.1745 0.0837 0.0187
(Shareholders’ Equity/Latest No. of Shares)

Price Earnings Ratio 12.48 20.96 35.40
(Price/Adjusted EPS)

Price/Revenue 1.917 2.580 0.069
(Price x Current No. Of Shares/Revenue)

Net Earnings Margin (%) 15.362 16.251 17.466
(Net Earnings/Revenue)

Revenue Growth (%) 77.695 81.487 47.717
([Current Revenue – Last Year Revenue]/Last Year Revenue)

Net Earnings Growth (%) 67.970 68.867 164.539
([Current Profi t – Last Year Profi t]/Last Year Profi t) 

Return On Asset (%) 21.107 21.522 36.222
(Net Income/Total Assets)

Return On Equity (%) 29.403 36.485 96.601
(Net Income/Equity)

Current Ratio 4.148 2.619 1.842
(Current Assets/Current Liabilities)

the growing importance in the contributions from the 

Indonesian market. 

To have a better appreciation of the market growth 

in Singapore, one should compare the joint FY2004 

revenue contributions of $19.8 million from Singapore 

and Indonesia against the combined Singapore and 

Indonesia revenue of $31.0 million in FY2005.

In terms of profi tability, the Group achieved 77.9% 

growth in gross profi t to $42.9 million in FY2005, 

maintaining a gross margin of 77.9%.

As our foreign subsidiaries operate in jurisdictions 

which impose higher corporate tax rates, higher profi t-

ability from these subsidiaries naturally resulted in an 

increase in tax expenses from S$1.5 million to S$2.8 

million. As a result of the higher taxes, the Group’s 

net profi t grew at 68% to $8.5 million.

The Group continues to improve on its fi nancial 

ratios. Current ratio stands at 4.15x while gearing 

was at a negligible 7%. The Group’s Return On Equity 

(ROE) is 29.4% while Return On Assets (ROA) stands 

at 21.1%. 

Contribution by Products
DR’s Secret/DR’s Seager continues to deliver 

dynamic growth in revenue for the Group, generating 

$41.3 million for the year. Revenue has increased by 

41.7% since 2004.

The Optrimax’s line of weight management prod-

ucts, which was launched in January 2005 produced 

encouraging results. Within the space of 12 months, 

Optrimax’s sales have already contributed more than 

8% of the Group’s total sales. 

The bwL Negative Ionizer, the Group’s latest product 

that was unveiled on 15 December 2005 sold 800 units 

in a short span of two weeks. The Group is currently 

planning a national campaign with FM97.2 DJ Billy to 

educate the public about the benefi ts of negative ions, 

as well as to create awareness of the product.

With these successes, we also face some chal-

lenges. Our water fi ltration equipment, Purefl o and 

our Retail brand Avance did not meet our sales 

expectations. The relatively good quality of water in 

Singapore does not create suffi cient demand for the 

use of our Purefl o system. However, we still foresee 

a good growth in Indonesia, Malaysia and Thailand. 

The Group will still continue to market this product 

to serve the needs of the market. 
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Contribution by Activities
 FY2005 FY2004 
Business Segment Revenue Revenue  Change

 S$’000 % S$’000 % %
Direct Selling 54,290 98.5 29,872 96.3 81.7
Retail 176 0.3 299 1.0 (41.1)
Export 632 1.2 836 2.7 (24.4)
Total 55,098 100.0 31,007 100.0 77.7

Contribution by Geographical Segment
 FY2005 FY2004 
Geographical Locations Revenue Revenue Change

 S$’000 % S$’000 % %
Singapore 17,987 32.7 17,754 57.3 1.3
Malaysia 22,971 41.7 10,705 34.5 114.6
Indonesia 12,963 23.5 2,004 6.4 546.9
Others 1,177 2.1 544 1.8 116.4
Total 55,098 100.0 31,007 100.0 77.7

Contribution by Products
 FY2005 FY2004 
Products Revenue Revenue  Change

 S$’000 % S$’000 % %
DR’s Secret/DR’s Seager 41,324 75.0 24,805 80.0 41.7
bwL Health Supplements 8,265 15.0 5736 18.5 30.6
Optrimax 4,738 8.6 310 1.0 93.5
Negative Ionizer 551 1.0 N/A N/A 100
Others 220 0.4 156 0.5 0.29
Total 55,098 100.0 31,007 100.0 77.7

The distribution of Avance was assigned to a third 

party distributor in 2005. This move was carried out 

to allow management to focus on the direct selling 

business and to reduce administrative expenses related 

to the distribution of Avance. A series of re-branding 

exercises is in the works to revitalise the brand image 

to attract more consumers. 

In short, the Group competes against companies 

with long histories in beauty, health and lifestyle 

equipment, and we never underestimate their ability 

to innovate and attract the attention of consumers. 

2005 was a very good year for us, and we are more 

prepared to build upon the Group’s core strengths 

to develop more innovative quality products for the 

challenges ahead.

Quality Control
Best World is committed to producing quality 

products and services. To that end, the management 

pays special attention to choosing a contract manu-

facturer or in the formulation of new products.

We received the ISO 9002 certifi cation in 2000 

from the Standards, Productivity and Innovative 

Board for our operations. This was upgraded to ISO 

9001 in 2003.

In 2004, we obtained a Manufacturer’s Licence 

for CPM from the HSA to package our products in 

our Singapore packaging facility. This licence, which 

is GMP equivalent, is administered by the Centre for 

Pharmaceutical Administration, an agency of HSA. 

These standards set forth for the qualifi cation of this 

licence ensures the production of good quality medi-

cines as well as the preservation of their quality down 

the supply chain from the manufacturers to distributors 

and retailers. 

All of our cosmetics, skin care, personal care 

and formulated nutritional supplement products are 

manufactured in GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) 

certifi ed or GMP equivalent facilities. As such, our 

products are ensured to be produced and controlled 

to the highest quality standard.

Growth Strategy
Membership Growth

The Group will continue to improve the member-

ship base in the existing market. As of December 

2005, our membership base stands at 68,577. With 

the opening of new markets and the development 

of the existing markets, we foresee the numbers 

increasing in 2006.
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 Lifestyle Centre

A distributor who has earned the minimum rank 

of a Silver Director will be eligible to open a LC in the 

location of his/her choice upon the approval of the 

management. The LC expenses will be fully incurred 

by the LC owner.

In countries like Malaysia and Indonesia, a Re-

gional Centre (RC) will be opened by the Group in 

strategic locations to support the local distributor’s 

network, however RCs are usually opened in either 

a capital city or major cities of the country in ques-

tion. The concept behind a LC allows the Group to 

penetrate deeper into existing markets without having 

to incur further capital expenditure for the set up of 

branch offi ces. 

With more LC opening up in the region, Best World 

products will be more accessible to the masses.

As of 31 December 2005, Best World has a total 

of 37 LCs in various markets that we operate in. 

New Products

In FY2005, the Group launched 12 new products, 

bringing the total number of products that the Group 

carries to 75.

Over the past three years, we have launched more 

than 30 products. Going forward, we aim to continue 

to maintain our target of introducing at least 10 new 

products every year. 

In December 2005, we successfully soft launched 

our new product, the bwL Negative Ionizer. The result 

was encouraging with over 800 units sold within a 

fortnight. We believe that demand for this quality 

product will continue to drive the sales in 2006.

New Market

The fi rst LC in Vietnam was opened in April 2005. 

Being the pioneer in direct selling in Vietnam, the 

Group will have fi rst mover advantage, allowing us to 

penetrate and build a solid presence before competi-

tion intensifi es. Vietnam will serve as an important 

gateway for expansion into the Indo-Chinese market 

in the near future. 

The incorporation of our Hong Kong subsidiary 

was completed in September 2005 and with the 

opening of our Hong Kong RC in June 2006, this will 

spearhead marketing initiatives for the Hong Kong 

and Macau region.

Having completed the Vigor Acquisition, the Group 

is now in a good position to explore its business op-

portunities in the PRC market. 

Brunei, Philippines, South Korea, Japan and India 

will be the new markets the Group will be strategising 

its growth for the next decade. 

Branding Project

The Group has set up a Branding Committee 

chaired by Executive Director Huang Ban Chin, with 

the CEO and Chairman acting in advisory roles. This 

project is currently supported by IE Singapore for a 

period of one year to create awareness of the ‘Best 

World’ name and to build a global image for the Group. 

With the expansion into more regional countries, 

this exercise will help to enhance Best World brand 

name globally.

With all these strategies in place, the Group 

believes that the growth momentum will continue 

into the current fi nancial year. As such, we expect a 

better performance in terms of revenue and profi t-

ability in 2006.

Awards in 2005

Recognition for Business Excellence

Singapore Fastest Growing 50 Certifi cation 2005

Awarded by DP Information Group

Singapore 500 SME

Awarded by DP Information Network

4th Pacifi c/Malaysia e-Entrepreneur 

Excellence Award 

Dr Dora Hoan

Dr Doreen Tan

Most Super Excellence Master Award 

of Direct Selling 2005

Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.

Professional Master Award

Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.

Recognition for Brand

2005: Excellence Brand bwL
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Social Responsibility

Our priority is to provide health or medical care 

to underprivileged patients, in particular, the elderly, 

children and people with physical disabilities. To 

that end, we contributed to the following charitable 

organisations in the hope that the health/medical-

related services in Singapore will be further improved 

for these communities:

• Singapore Red Cross

• Kwong Wai Shiu Hospital

• Compass Welfare Foundation

Besides lending a hand to help the needy, we also 

believe in promoting fi ne arts in Singapore to make 

our country a more culturally-aware society. Hence, 

we are also an avid arts supporter and sponsor of 

the following organisations:

• The Singapore Chinese Orchestra

• Singapore Literature

• President’s Challenge

• Singapore Management University

• Xiyao Cultural Association

We hope that our support will help groom more 

young musical talents and ensure the continued de-

livery of high quality Chinese orchestral music.

As for our direction in 2006, we will continue our 

focus to provide medical attention to the underprivi-

leged and have set a new goal to contribute to the 

development of accessible educational programmes, 

especially for the underprivileged children. By nar-

rowing our focus, we believe that this will ultimately 

broaden our reach.

Best World has always believed strongly that it is part 
of the organisation’s responsibility to make meaningful 
contributions back to society. At Best World, healthy living 
cannot be over-emphasised. In order to enjoy life at its best, 
our management and employees take pride in advocating 
healthy living and healthy habits.
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Corporate Governance
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Corporate Governance

liev

Good corporate governance is not only about having the best set of standard operating procedures or com-

plying with the codes and rules. Rather, it is about having substance over form, and above all, ethics and 

integrity. Upholding the principle of good corporate governance underscores a company that has maintained 

a leadership position in the market and commanded respect among its peers.

Our Board of Directors is fully committed to ensuring that the highest standards of Corporate Governance are 

practised throughout the Group. Independent directors, considered to be the cornerstone of good corporate 

governance, are carefully and independently selected to make up half of our board. The board adopts fully, 

timely and maximum disclosure. In this approach, the board is proactive, explicit about our roles and avoids 

intrusion into the management’s operations. Our Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to ensure that 

the highest standards of corporate governance are practised throughout Best World International Limited 

(“Best World”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Good corporate governance establishes and maintains an 

ethical environment in the Group, which strives to enhance the interests of the shareholders of the Group (the 

“Shareholders”). Best World’s corporate governance practices are described with reference to the principles 

set out in the Code of Corporate Governance (the “Code”).

In 2005, we have participated in various investors’ seminars like public presentations to members of the 

Securities Investor Association of Singapore (“SIAS”) as well as road shows at Phillip Securities where we 

presented to more than 100 members of the public. The management also presented at Westcomb IPO Gems 

Seminar to more than 500 retail investors. Such activities allow us to interact more with our shareholders 

and investors who are keen to know more about the Company. We shall continue to participate in seminars 

of similar nature to increase the awareness of Best World among the public.

information through announcements and Public Relations activities.

BOARD MATTERS

The Board’s Conduct Of Its Affairs
Principle 1: Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the Company.

The Board consists of 6 members, comprising three independent non-executive directors, and three execu-

to the Group.

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi – Chairman

Mr Huang Ban Chin – Executive Director 

Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson – Independent Director 

Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy – Independent Director

Mr Lee Sen Choon  – Independent Director
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The full Board meets regularly and adhoc meetings are convened as and when deemed necessary.

The Company’s Articles of Association provide for the Board to convene meetings via teleconferencing and 

electronic means. The details of attendance by individual directors in the year 2005 are as follows:

Number of meetings       
held while a member Number of meetings

in year 2005           attended

Doreen Tan Nee Moi 2 2

Dora Hoan Beng Mui 2 2

Huang Ban Chin  2 2

Lee Teck Leng Robson 2 2

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy 2 2

Lee Sen Choon  2 2

The Board is entrusted with the responsibility of the overall management of the Company. The principal 

functions of the Board are:

of Management;

reporting and compliance; 

c) Approving nominations of board directors, committee members and key personnel; and

acquisitions and divestments proposals.

-

ture. The Board approves transactions exceeding certain threshold limits and while delegating authority for 

Board members are also encouraged to attend seminars and receive training to improve themselves in the 

discharge of their duties as directors. The Company works closely with professionals to provide its directors 

with changes to relevant laws, regulations and accounting standards.
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Corporate Governance

Board Composition And Balance
Principle 2: There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise 

objective judgment on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management. No individual 

or small group of individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision.

The Company endeavours to maintain a strong and independent element on the Board. The independent 

-

tee (“NC”) has reviewed and determined that the said directors are independent. The independence of each 

director is reviewed annually by the NC.

The Board is of the opinion that its current size of 6 board members is appropriate, taking into account the 

nature and scope of the Company’s operations. The composition of the Board is also reviewed on an annual 

basis by a Nominating Committee to ensure that the Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and experi-

ence and possess the core competencies for effective functioning of the Board. 

“Board of Directors”.

Principle 3: There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the top of the Company – the working 

of the Board and the executive responsibility of the Company’s business – which will ensure a balance of 

power and authority, such that no one individual represents a considerable concentration of power.

a balance of power and authority. The presence of a strong independent element and the participation of 

unfettered powers of decision.

The Chairman’s duties and responsibilities include:

a) scheduling of meetings to enable the Board to perform its duties responsibly;

b) preparing the agenda of meetings;

c) ensuring the proper conduct of meetings and accurate documentation of the proceedings;

e) ensuring compliance with internal policies and guidelines of the Company.
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In addition to the above duties, the Chairman will assume duties and responsibilities as may be required 

from time to time. 

Company and provides the Group with strong leadership and vision.

Board Membership
Principle 4: There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new directors 

to the Board. As a principle of good corporate governance, all directors should be required to submit 

themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals.

The Nominating Committee (“NC”) is established comprising 3 members whom are non-executive independ-

ent directors. 

Chairman   – Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Member    – Mr Lee Sen Choon

Member    – Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson

Number of meetings
held while a member Number of meetings

in year 2005 attended

R. Ravindran    2 2

Lee Sen Choon  2 2

Lee Teck Leng Robson 2 2

The NC is established for the purposes of ensuring that there is a formal and transparent process for all board 

The duties of the NC are as follows: 

a) To make recommendations to the Board on all board appointments; 

b) To re-nominate directors having regard to the director’s contribution and performance;

c) To determine annually whether or not a director is independent; and

d) To make recommendation to the board the performance criteria and appraisal process to be used for 

the evaluation of the individual directors as well as the effectiveness of the board as a whole, which 
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themselves to re-election by the shareholders in every Annual General Meeting. In addition, all directors of 

election are presented in this Annual Report under the heading “Board of Directors”.   

Board Performance
Principle 5: There should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and 

the contribution by each director to the effectiveness of the Board.

An effective Board is able to make sound decisions and act in the best interests of the Company and 

its shareholders. 

The NC has reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution by each indi-

vidual director to the effectiveness of the Board in the year 2005. This will be conducted on an annual basis. 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

adequate and timely information prior to board meetings and on an on-going basis.

time to enable the directors to obtain additional information or explanations from the Management, if neces-

sary. The board papers include minutes of the previous meeting, reports relating to investment proposals, 

The directors may communicate directly with the Management team and the Company Secretary on all mat-

ters whenever they deemed necessary. The Company Secretary attends board meetings and is responsible 

for recording of the proceedings.

The Company currently does not have a formal procedure for Directors to seek independent and professional 

advice for the furtherance of their duties. However, directors may, on a case-to-case basis, propose to the 

Board for such independent and professional advice, the cost of which may be borne by the Company.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS

Procedures For Developing Remuneration Policies

of individual directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) is established comprising 3 members whom are non-executive inde-

pendent directors. 

Chairman   – Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson*

Member    – Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Member    – Mr Lee Sen Choon 

* was appointed as Chairman of RC on 14 March 2005

Number of meetings
held while a member Number of meetings

in year 2005           attended

Lee Teck Leng Robson 3  3

Lee Sen Choon   3 3

R. Ravindran   3 3

advice where necessary.

-

ing the remuneration packages of individual directors. The overriding principle is that no director should be 

-

ship, roles and functions and administration. 3 meetings were held in the year 2005.

The duties of the RC are as follows:

a) To review and recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration for executive directors, chief 

b) To review the remuneration packages of employees related to any of the executive directors, CEO or 

substantial shareholder; and

c) To recommend to the board, the Executive’s and Employees’ Share Option Schemes or any long term 

incentive scheme.
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Level of Mix of Remuneration
Principle 8: The level of remuneration should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the di-

rectors needed to run the company successfully but companies should avoid paying more for this 

purpose. A proportion of the remuneration, especially that of executive directors, should be linked 

to performance.

In setting and reviewing the remuneration packages, the Company takes into consideration the remunera-

tion and employment conditions in comparable companies and industries, as well as the Group’s relative 

performance and the work scope of the individual directors.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is based on service agreements dated 20 May 2004 and which 

are disclosed to shareholders in the Company’s Prospectus dated 28 June 2004. The service agreements 

are for an initial period of three years for Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui and Mr Huang 

Ban Chin. The remuneration for the executive directors and the key executives comprise of a basic salary 

component and a variable component which is the incentive bonus, based on the performance of the Group 

as a whole.

The independent directors are paid a director’s fee for their efforts and time spent, responsibilities and contribu-

Disclosure on Remuneration
Principle 9: Each company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of 

remuneration, and the procedures for setting remuneration, in the Company’s annual report.

Remuneration of Directors of the Company

     Salary Bonus Fund Bonus in-kind Fees Total
     (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Remuneration Band 

up to $250,000

Lee Sen Choon  – – – – – 100 100

Robson Lee Teck Leng – – – – – 100 100

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy – – – – – 100 100

Remuneration Band up

from $250,000-$500,000

Huang Ban Chin  42.0 6.5 3.6 45.3 2.6 – 100

Remuneration Band up 

from $500,001-$750,000

Dora Hoan Beng Mui 50.5 5.6 1.4 40.9 1.6 – 100

Doreen Tan Nee Moi 50.5 5.6 1.4 40.9 1.6 – 100
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A special bonus payment, which is payable over a period of 4 years commencing from 2005 up to 2008 

was awarded to staff. Our top 5 executives (who are not directors) of the Group fall within the remuneration 

band of below $150,000:

Ms Cheh Foong Kuan Katherine     – Country Manager, Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.

Ms Jorina Leong Wai Hun – Manager, Information Technology

Ms Koh Hui  – Group Finance Manager

Ms Koh Koon Choo Jean – Senior Manager, Regional Network 

Mr Lu Shih Chieh @ Jerry Lu – Senior Country Manager, Singapore and Indonesia

The remuneration of the Directors and key employees is reviewed by the RC and is disclosed in the Annual 

Report. The Board is of the opinion that it is not necessary to invite the shareholders to approve the Board’s 

annual remuneration report and policy. 

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Accountability
Principle 10: The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management is accountable to 

the Board.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management is accountable to the Board.

The Management presents to the Board, the half year and full year accounts and the Audit Committee re-

ports to the Board on the results for review and approval. The Board approved the results after review and 

authorized the release of the results to the SGX-ST and the public via SGXNET.

The Board is also provided with relevant information on the Group’s performance for effective monitoring 

and decision making.

Audit Committee
Principle 11: The Board should establish an Audit Committee (“AC”) with written terms of reference 

which clearly set out its authority and duties.

The Audit Committee comprises of 3 members whom are non-executive independent directors. 

Chairman   – Mr Lee Sen Choon

Member    – Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Member    – Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson
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The Chairman, Mr Lee Sen Choon, has more than 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation 

business management. 

and experience in discharging their duties.

The role of the AC is to assist the board with discharging its responsibility to safeguard the Company’s assets, 

maintain adequate accounting records, develop and maintain effective systems of internal control.

The terms of reference AC are:

external auditors;

d) To nominate external auditors for re-appointment;

respective announcements before submission to the board of directors;

f) To give due consideration to the requirements of Stock Exchange Listing Rules; and

g) To review interested person transactions.

and is given full discretion to invite any director or executive director to attend its meetings. In addition, the 

AC has also been given reasonable resources to enable it to perform its functions properly.

The AC has conducted an annual review of the volume of non-audit services to satisfy itself that the nature 

-

mending their re-nomination to the board. 

During the year 2005, the AC met 2 times and the details of attendance were as follows:

Number of meetings
held while a member Number of meetings

in year 2005           attended

Lee Sen Choon  2 2

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy 2 2

Lee Teck Leng Robson 2 2
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Internal Control
Principle 12: The Board should ensure that the Management maintains a sound system of internal 

controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the company’s assets.

The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the system of internal controls 

-

statements or loss and includes the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records, 

The Board notes that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance against the occurrence 

Based on the internal auditors’ reports submitted by the internal auditors and the various controls put in place 

Internal Audit
Principle 13: The Company should establish an internal audit function that is independent of the 

activities it audits.

The Company has engaged the services of external consultant to perform the internal audit functions. The 

internal auditor reports directly to the Chairman of the AC on internal audit matters.

Communication with Shareholders
Principle 14: Companies should engage in regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.

The Company endeavours to communicate regularly, effectively and fairly with its shareholders.

The Company communicated information to its shareholders on a timely basis through:

b) The Group’s website at www.bestworld.com.sg from which shareholders can access. The website 

annual report;

c) Annual reports which are prepared and issued to all shareholders;

d) Share investor online portal, which provides the Company’s share updates and all publicly disclosed 

e) Asiaone.com.sg forum which publishes updated investor relations information.
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Principle 15: Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at AGMs, and allow share-

holders the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company.

The Annual General Meeting is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. There is an open question 

and answer session at which shareholders may raise questions or share their views regarding the proposed 

resolutions and the Company’s businesses and affairs.

In addition, the Chairman of the respective committees and the external auditors will be present at the AGM 

to address any queries from the shareholders.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has set out guidelines to the directors and key employees of the group to prohibit dealings 

in the Company’s securities while in possession of price sensitive information and during the period com-

mencing one month before the announcement of the Company’s half year and full year results and ending 

on the date of announcement of the results.

All directors and executives of the Company are also advised to observe insider trading laws at all times 

even when dealing in the Company’s securities within the permitted trading period.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS POLICY

review by the audit committee.

Currently, the Company is not required to have a general mandate from its shareholders in relation to IPT 

as the aggregate value of IPT transactions is below the threshold level as set out in the Listing Manual of 

the SGX-ST.
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Report of The Directors

-

1. DIRECTORS AT DATE OF REPORT

Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi

Mr Huang Ban Chin

Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson

Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Mr Lee Sen Choon

2. ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS BY MEANS OF
THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

the acquisition of shares or debentures in the company or any other body corporate.

3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

capital of the company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings 

kept by the company under section 164 of the Companies Act, Cap 50 except as follows:

     Held in the Deemed

     
name of directors  interest

Name of directors and companies At beginning At end At beginning At end 
in which interests are held of year of year of year of year

Best World International Limited Shares of $0.03 each

Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui 42,210,500 16,931,600  – 60,000,000

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi 42,210,500 16,931,600  – 60,000,000

Mr Huang Ban Chin 5,000,000 4,800,000  –  1,200,000

Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson 44,000 52,800  –  –

Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy 50,000  –  –  –

Mr Lee Sen Choon 50,000 60,000  –  –

By virtue of section 7 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui and Dr Doreen Tan Nee 

Moi are deemed to have an interest in all the related corporations of the company.

The directors’ interests as at 21 January 2006 were the same as those at the end of the year.
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4. CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS

50, by reason of a contract made by the company or a related corporation with the director or with a 

5. OPTIONS TO TAKE UP UNISSUED SHARES

the group was granted. 

6. OPTIONS EXERCISED

by virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

7. UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION

8. AUDIT COMMITTEE
The members of the audit committee at the date of this report are as follows:

Mr Lee Sen Choon (Chairman of audit committee and Independent Director)

Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy (Independent Director)

Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson (Independent Director)

others, it performed the following functions:

• Reviewed with the external auditors the external audit plan;

• Reviewed with the external auditors their evaluation of the company’s internal accounting control, 

to them;

• Reviewed with the internal auditors the scope of results of the internal audit procedures.

directors of the company for adoption; and 

Other functions performed by the audit committee are described in the report on corporate governance 

included in the annual report.
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8. AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)
The audit committee has recommended to the board of directors that the auditors, RSM Chio Lim, be 

nominated for re-appointment as auditors at the next annual general meeting of the company.

9. AUDITORS

was known as Chio Lim & Associates before 11 January 2006.

10 SUBSEQUENT DEVELOPMENTS

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

Dora Hoan Beng Mui      Doreen Tan Nee Moi

Director        Director

16 February 2006
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fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31 December 2005 and changes in 

then ended and at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will 

be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

Doreen Tan Nee Moi      Dora Hoan Beng Mui

Director        Director

16 February 2006

Statement of Directors
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that 

of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,

equity of the company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the group and of the company as at 31 December 2005 and the results, changes 

that date; and

(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the company and by those subsidiar-

ies incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act.

RSM Chio Lim 

Singapore

16 February 2006

Partner in charge of audit: Goh Swee Hong

Effective from year ended 31 December 2005

Auditors’ Report 
To The Members of Best World International Limited  
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Balance Sheets
Year ended 31 December 2005

     Group Company

     Notes 2005 2004 2005 2004
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 4 19,003 9,319 13,379 6,580

Trade and other receivables 5 9,499 4,923 9,497 3,702

Inventories   6 4,348 3,158 3,453 2,444

Total current assets 32,850 17,400 26,329 12,726

Non-current assets

Other assets   7 524 722  –  –

Investment in subsidiaries 8  –  – 3,137 3,022

 –  –  –  –  

Property, plant and equipment 10 6,226 4,910 2,612 1,861

Goodwill    11 320 320  –  –  

Other intangible assets 12 170 61 116 61

Total non-current assets 7,240 6,013 5,865 4,944

Total assets   40,090 23,413 32,194 17,670

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short term borrowings 13  – 611  – 510

Trade and other payables 14 5,712 4,842 2,400 2,096

Income tax payable 1,994 1,291 1,345 662

Current portion of long-term borrowings 15 74 83 34 29

140 92 82 45

Total current liabilities 7,920 6,919 3,861 3,342

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 15 1,289 1,338 454 490

Finance leases  16 652 485 420 245

Deferred tax liabilities 23 163 82 117 61

Total non-current liabilities 2,104 1,905 991 796

Total liabilities  10,024 8,824 4,852 4,138

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent:

Share capital   17 4,950 3,750 4,950 3,750

Other reserves  12,690 5,514 12,736 5,601

Retained earnings  11,136 4,547 9,656 4,181

     28,776 13,811 27,342 13,532

Minority interest  1,290 778  –  –  

Total equity   30,066 14,589 27,342 13,532

Total liabilities and equity 40,090 23,413 32,194 17,670
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     Group

     Notes 2005 2004
     $’000 $’000

Revenue    18 55,098 31,007

Cost of sales   (12,200) (6,892)

42,898 24,115

Financial income  19 151 35

Financial expense  19 (133) (66)

Other income    31 68

Distribution costs  (22,083) (11,730)

Administrative expenses (8,913) (5,592)

Other credits/(charges) 20 (196) 4

21 11,755 6,834

Income tax expense 23 (2,833) (1,495)

8,922 5,339

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the company 8,464 5,039

Minority interest  458 300

     8,922 5,339

of the company during the year (expressed in cents per share)

– Basic  25 5.50 3.66

– Diluted  25 5.50 3.66

Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended 31 December 2005
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Statements of Changes In Equity
Year ended 31 December 2005

       Foreign
       Currency      
     Share Share Translation Retained  Minority Total
Group    Capital Premium Reserve Earnings Total Interests Equity
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 31 December 2003 1,845  –  – 1,288 3,133  – 3,133

Foreign currency translation 

differences – Net income 

recognised directly in equity  –  – (87)  – (87) (29) (116)

Total recognised income

and expense for the year  –  – (87) 5,039 4,952 271 5,223

Issue of shares pursuant to a 

bonus issue (Note 17) 1,155  –  – (1,155)  –  –  –

Issue of shares (Note 17) 750 6,750  –  – 7,500  – 7,500

Issue expenses (b)  – (1,149)  –  – (1,149)  – (1,149)

Arising from acquisition 

of subsidiaries  –  –  –  –  – 507 507

Dividends (Note 24)  –  –  – (625) (625)  – (625)

Balance at 31 December 2004 3,750 5,601 (87) 4,547 13,811 778 14,589

Foreign currency translation 

differences – Net income 

recognised directly in equity  –  – 41  – 41 5 46

Total recognised income and 

expense for the year  –  – 41 8,464 8,505 463 8,968

Issue of shares pursuant to a 

bonus issue (Note 17) 750 (750)  –  –  –  –  –

Issue of shares (Note 17) 450 8,100  –  – 8,550  – 8,550

Issue of shares by a subsidiary  –  –  –  –  – 49 49

Issue expenses   – (215)  –  – ( 215)  – (215)

Dividends (Note 24)  –  –  – (1,875) (1,875)  – (1,875)

Balance at 31 December 2005 4,950 12,736 (a) (46) (a) 11,136 28,776 1,290 30,066
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     Share Share Retained
Company    Capital Premium Earnings Total

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 31 December 2003 1,845  – 1,352 3,197

(Total recognised income for the year)  –  – 4,609 4,609

Issue of shares pursuant to a bonus issue (Note 17) 1,155  – (1,155)  –  

Issue of shares (Note 17) 750 6,750  – 7,500

Issue expenses (b)  – (1,149)  – (1,149)

Dividends (Note 24)  –  – (625) (625)

Balance at 31 December 2004 3,750 5,601 4,181 13,532

(Total recognised income for the year)  –  – 7,350 7,350

Issue of shares pursuant to a bonus issue (Note 17) 750 (750)  –  –

Issue of shares (Note 17) 450 8,100  – 8,550

Issue of expenses – (215)  – (215)

Dividends (Note 24)  –  – (1,875) (1,875)

Balance at 31 December 2005 4,950 12,736 (a) 9,656 27,342

(a) Not available for distribution as cash dividends.

(b) This includes professional fees of $130,000 paid to the company’s auditors for the purpose of acting as Reporting 

Statements of Changes In Equity
Year ended 31 December 2005
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     Group

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

8,922 5,339

Income tax expense 2,833 1,495

Depreciation expense 650 401

Amortisation of intangible assets 8 7

Interest income (151) (22)

Interest expense 70 63

Loss/(gain) on disposal of plant and equipment 140 (22)

12,472 7,261

Trade and other receivables (4,576) (1,778)

Inventories  (1,190) (1,831)

Trade and other payables 870 2,038

Cash generated from operations 7,576 5,690

Interest received 151 22

Interest paid  (70) (63)

Income tax paid (2,049) (827)

Net cash from operating activities 5,608 4,822

Disposal of plant and equipment  – 237

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note 4) (1,734) (2,728)

Increase in investments – (127)

Increase in intangibles assets (117) (52)

Increase (decrease) in other assets 198 (722)

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired (Note 26) – 638

Increase in cash and cash equivalents (restricted in use) (5,088) (1)

Net cash used in investing activities (6,741) (2,755)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 December 2005
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     Group

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Proceeds from issuing shares 8,550 7,500

Issue expenses  (215) (1,149)

(Decrease)/increase in short-term borrowings (510) 510

(Decrease)/increase in long-term borrowings (58) 78

(133) (315)

Dividends paid  (1,875) (625)

5,759 5,999

Net effect of exchange rate changes 

in consolidating foreign subsidiaries 33 (85)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,659 7,981

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,195 1,214

38  –

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 4) 13,892 9,195

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 December 2005



53
Best World Annual Report 2005

1. GENERAL

They are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and the Singapore 

board of directors on 16 February 2006.

The company is an investment holding company. It is listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore Dealing 

and Automated Quotation System. 

The principal activities of the company are those of distribution of nutritional supplement products, per-

sonal care products and healthcare equipment. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
-

company and of those companies in which it holds, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, over 50 

percent of the shares and voting rights (its subsidiaries including special purpose entities). The consoli-

expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full on consolidation. The results of the investees acquired or 

the dates of disposal. On disposal the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination 

of the gain or loss on disposal. 

SUBSIDIARIES – A subsidiary is an entity including unincorporated and special purpose entities that 

of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or 

convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. In the company’s 

for impairment in value. The net book values of the subsidiaries are not necessarily indicative of the 

amounts that would be realised in a current market exchange.

Notes To Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

-

market exchange.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS – Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase 

method. The cost of a business combination includes the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets 

given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the acquirer, in exchange for 

control of the acquiree; plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. Any excess of 

-

gent liabilities so recognised is accounted for as goodwill. The excess of acquirer’s interest in the net 

the conditions for recognition under FRS 103 are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, 

with FRS 105 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised 

and measured at fair value less costs to sell. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less 

any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually, or 

more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. An impairment 

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. There was no negative goodwill. 

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

MINORITY INTERESTS – Any minority interest in the acquiree (subsidiary) is initially measured at the 

minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances and 

any highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash for 

TRADE RECEIVABLES – After initial recognition at fair value, trade receivables are measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method but short-duration receivables with no stated interest rate are 

Trade receivables are stated after provision for impairment. A trade receivable amount is regarded as 

to approximate their fair value. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement. 

Normally no interest is charged on trade receivables.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

trading, designated as available for sale, and those that are not substantially recoverable, other than 

measured at their fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less provision for impairment. These 

items are included in the balance sheet in loan receivables and trade and other receivables as current 

assets or as non-current assets where the maturities are greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. 

-

able value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes 

all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 

present location and condition. A write down on cost is made for where the cost is not recoverable or 

if the selling prices have declined.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate 

the gross carrying amounts less their residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an 

item of property, plant and equipment. The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

Freehold buildings  – 2%.

Leasehold properties  – 1.3%.

Plant and equipment  – 20%

Depreciation is not provided for freehold land.

An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that period the 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumu-

lated impairment losses. The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each 

a change in an accounting estimate, and the depreciation charge for the current and future periods are 

is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of 

the item and is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

to an internally generated intangible asset. Research expenditure is expensed when incurred. Devel-

opment cost incurred relating to the design and testing of new or improved products are recognised 

development. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development cost is 

cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. An intangible asset 

life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period 

useful life from the point at which the asset is ready for use. The useful lives of trademark and licenses 

are 10 years.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS – At each reporting date an assessment is made whether 

there is any indication that a depreciable or amortisable asset may be impaired. If any such indication 

exists, an estimate is made of the recoverable amount of the asset. Irrespective of whether there is any 

indication of impairment, an annual impairment test is performed at the same time every year on an in-

loss is the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount and is recognised in the income 

statement unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss 

is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is 

the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

impairment loss recognised in prior periods are assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An 

impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 

loss had been recognised. 

one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss 

how likely, are not recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings when recognised 

initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost and any difference between the proceeds (net 

of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period 

for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. 

LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS – A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation 

amount of the obligation. These include trade and other payables and where the effect of the time value 

of money is material, the amount recognised is the present value of the expenditures expected to be 

time is recognised as interest expense.

-

nised as an asset and as liability in the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased 

asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception 

of the lease. The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is 

the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this is practicable to determine; if not, the lessee’s incremental 

borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an 

which are allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 

interest on the remaining balance of the liability. The assets are depreciated as owned depreciable assets. 

as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless 

are not on that basis. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral 

part of the total lease expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS – A government grant is recognised at fair value when there is reasonable 

assurance that the conditions attaching to it will be complied with and that the grant will be received. 

match them with the related costs that they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Grants 

related to depreciable assets are allocated to income over the period in which such assets are used 

grants at fair value, are presented in the balance sheet by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying 

amount of the asset.

the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds. Where the 

company reacquires its own equity instruments as treasury shares, the consideration paid, including 

any directly attributable incremental cost is deducted from equity attributable to the company’s equity 

holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold 

or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs 

and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the company’s equity holders 

and no gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

liabilities including cash, accounts receivable, short-term borrowings, accounts payable approximate 

their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments. The fair values of long-term debts 

relevant notes. 

REVENUE RECOGNITION – The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or 

ordinary activities of the entity and it is shown net of related tax, estimated returns, discounts and volume 

are transferred to the buyer, there is neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 

associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, the amount of revenue and the 

costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Interest revenue 

is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest rate that takes into account the 

effective yield on the asset. Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s 

right to receive the dividend is legally established. 

the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are 

recorded in Singapore dollars at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet 

date, recorded monetary balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in foreign 

currencies are reported at the rates ruling at the balance sheet and fair value dates respectively. All re-
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
FOREIGN CURRENCY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – The foreign entities determine the appropriate 

statements the assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the 

company are translated at year end rates of exchange and the income and expense items are translated 

in a separate component of equity until the disposal of the foreign entity.

BORROWING COSTS – All borrowing costs that are interest and other costs incurred in connection 

with the borrowing of funds costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred 

except for borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 

a qualifying asset that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 

or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until substantially all the activities necessary to 

prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. The interest expense is calculated 

using the effective interest rate method.

INCOME TAX – The income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability method that requires the 

recognition of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets 

returns. The measurements of current and deferred tax liabilities and assets are based on provisions 

of the enacted or substantially enacted tax laws; the effects of future changes in tax laws or rates are 

not anticipated. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same income 

tax authority. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and 

expected to be realised. A deferred tax amount is recognised for all temporary differences, unless the 

deferred tax amount arises from (a) goodwill for which amortisation is not deductible for tax purposes; 

or (b) the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which (i) is not a business combination; 

deferred tax liability is not recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments 

to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and (b) it is probable that the temporary 

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

separately from those of the entity in an independently administered fund. The entity contributes an amount 

the income statement in the period to which they relate. This plan is in addition to the contributions to 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
compensated absences is recognised in the case of accumulating compensated absences, when the 

employees render service that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences; and in the 

case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

SEGMENT REPORTING – A business segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is 

engaged in providing an individual product or service or a group of related products or services and that 

segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in providing products or serv-

from those of components operating in other economic environments. 

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that 

Critical accounting judgements:
ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS – An allowance is for doubtful accounts for estimated 

losses resulting from the subsequent inability of our customers to make required payments. If the 

analyses accounts receivables and analyses historical bad debt, customer concentrations, customer 

creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in our customer payment terms when making 

transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary 

course of business. The company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates of whether 

that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in 

the period in which such determination is made. 

taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities and the extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised. 

future against which the temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised. Management also 

considers future taxable income and tax planning strategies in assessing whether deferred tax assets 

should be recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Critical assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
INVENTORY RELATED ALLOWANCES – A review is made periodically on inventory for excess inventory, 

obsolescence and declines in net realisable value below cost and record an allowance against the inven-

tory balance for any such declines. These reviews require management to estimate future demand for 

our products. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of inventory.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL – The carrying amount of the Group’s goodwill at 31 De-

cember 2005 was $320,000 (2004 : $320,000). The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered 

any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2. The recoverable amounts 

of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations 

require the use of estimates. More details are provided in note 7. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

some cash and liquid resources, and various items, such as trade and other receivables, trade and other 

credit risk, interest risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The management reviews and agrees 

policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

of credit risk and failures by counterparties to discharge their obligations consist principally of cash, cash 

-

liquidity, the policy is to ensure continuity of funding and where necessary a certain percentage of the 

There is also exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates arising from foreign currency transactions 

and balances and changes in fair values. These exposures and changes in fair values from time to time 
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are monitored and any gains and losses are included in the income statement unless otherwise stated in 

currency contracts, derivatives transactions or other arrangements.

3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A related party is an entity or person that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries con-

members of the family of any individual referred to herein and others who have the ability to control, 

with, directly or indirectly, any such individual. This includes parents, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, 

-

party transactions and balances below.

3.1 Related parties:

There are transactions and arrangements between the company and related parties and the effects 

-

less stated otherwise. For non-current balances, interest is imputed based on the cost of borrowing 

less the interest rate if any provided in the agreement for the balance.

-

ments, this item includes the following: 

    Group

    2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Rental of premises from directors – (102)

  Purchase of property from directors – 1,400

 3.2 Key management compensation: 

  

2,074 1,160
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3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)
3.2 Key management compensation (Cont’d)

are following items:

    2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

  Directors’ remuneration of directors of the company 1,686 904

Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the report on 

corporate governance.

Key management personnel are directors and those persons having authority and responsibility for 

planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company, directly or indirectly. The above 

amounts for key management compensation are for all the directors and four other key manage-

ment personnel. 

3.3 Other payables to related parties:

The trade receivables and payables balances arising from sales and purchases of goods and 

The movements in other payables to related parties are as follows:

     Directors

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

  Other payables:

  Balance at beginning of year (768) (206)

  Amounts paid during the year 768 –

Amounts received during the year – (562)

  Balance at end of year – credit – (768)

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Not restricted in use 13,892 9,296 8,291 6,580

Restricted (a)  5,111 23 5,088 –

     19,003 9,319 13,379 6,580

cilities granted to the company.
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’D)
The rate of interest for the cash on interest earning accounts is between 0.7% and 0.8% (2004 : 0.7% 

and 0.8%) receivable yearly. These approximate the weighted effective interest rate.

The item comprises the following balance sheet amounts:

     Group

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

  As shown above 19,003 9,319

  Cash restricted in use over 3 months (5,111) (23)

Bank overdrafts (Note 13) – (101)

  Cash and cash equivalents as stated 13,892 9,195

B Non-cash transactions.

During the year the group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of ap-

proximately $2,082,000 (2004 : $3,288,000) of which $348,000 (2004 : $560,000) was acquired by 

property, plant and equipment. 

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade receivables

Outside parties 5,512 4,359 878 1,254

Less: provision for impairment (5) (5) – –

Subsidiaries (Notes 3 and 8) – – 3,542 594

Other receivables and prepayments:

Deposits   752 421 420 105

Subsidiaries (Notes 3 and 8) – – 1,855 1,611

Advances to suppliers 331 – – –

Share application monies (a) 2,673 – 2,673 –

Other receivables 109 101 77 94

Prepayments  127 47 52 44

     9,499 4,923 9,497 3,702
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5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Movements in above provision:

  Balance at beginning and at end of year 5 5 – –  

Analysis of above amounts denominated 

  in foreign currencies:

United States dollars 2,793 172 120 172

Malaysian ringgits 1,511 682 – –

Thailand bahts 84 – – –  

Hong Kong dollars 89 – – –  

(a) This relates to monies for the application to increase the paid up capital of subsidiary Best World Lifestyle 

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd by S$2.67 million (RMB 12.9 million). The application was subsequently approved on 

6 January 2006.

     Group and Company

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Concentration of trade receivable customers:

Top 1 customer 692 557

Top 2 customers 824 864

Top 3 customers 846 1,153

The average credit period generally granted to trade receivable customers is about 30 days (2004 : 30 days). 

Current receivables with a short duration are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed to 

approximate the fair value.
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6. INVENTORIES
     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Finished goods for resale 4,348 3,158 3,453 2,444

Inventories are stated after provision. 

Movements in provision:

Balance at beginning of year (18) – (18) –  

Charge to income statement 

  included in other charges (56) (18) (56) (18)

Balance at end of year (74) (18) (74) (18)

7. OTHER ASSETS
     Group

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Product licenses 524 722

The company entered into an asset sale and purchase agreement dated 16 January 2004, as supple-

mented by Supplemental Agreement dated 16 February 2004 (the “Vigor Acquisition Agreement”) with 

Chengdu Weige’er Stock Holding Co. Ltd and Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd to acquire 20 

product licences, inventories and all the trade marks in respect of the range of nutritional supplements 

sold and marketed in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for the past 5 years under the brand “Vigor”. 

The consideration payable in respect of this acquisition is approximately but not more than RMB 20 

million (S$4.2 million).

On 6 April 2004, the company, Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd. (‘‘BWC’’), Chengdu Weige’er 

Stock Holding Co., Ltd and Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd entered into an agreement to 

novate all the company’s rights interest and obligations under the Vigor Acquisition Agreement to BWC. 

The Vigor consideration is payable in 3 milestone instalment payments, namely:

(i) RMB 1 million is payable upon the receipt of inventories;

(ii) RMB 4 million is payable upon the establishment of Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd; and

(iii) The balance of RMB 15 million is payable on completion of transfer of the licenses and trademark.

As at 31 December 2005, the group has paid approximately RMB 5 million (S$1.03 million), representing 
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7. OTHER ASSETS (CONT’D)
The inventories received by the group were estimated to have a net realisable value of approximately 

-

ment of the Vigor Acquisition Agreement was accounted as cost of product licenses. During the year 

ended 31 December 2005, the inventories were however sold for $498,000. The surplus of $198,000 

from the sale of inventories was used to reduce the costs of product licenses. 

On 9 August 2005 BWC, Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, Chengdu Weige’er Stock Holding Co. 

Ltd and Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd entered into an agreement to novate BWC’s right, 

interest and obligation under the Vigor Acquisition Agreement to Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., 

Ltd. The balance amount payable in respect of the contract was also determined to be S$2.66 million 

(RMB 12.66 million). As at 31 December 2005, Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd has further paid 

S$0.33 million (RMB 1.61 million) under the Vigor Acquisition Agreement. The remaining amount of S$2.33 

million (RMB 11.05 million) was paid subsequent to year end after Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., 

Ltd has increased its paid up capital by S$2.67 million (US$1.6 million).

Intangible assets with useful lives are amortised. The useful lives of the product licenses is estimated to 

be 25 years. Amortisation of the product licenses costs will commence when the product licenses are 

available for use.

8. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
     Company

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Unlisted equity shares at cost 3,137 3,022

Analysis of above amounts denominated in foreign currencies:

Malaysian ringgits 1,753 1,753

Thailand bahts 11 11

Indonesian rupiah 115 –

The fair value of the subsidiaries is deemed to be not reliably measurable as the probabilities of the 

various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed as used in estimating fair values. 

Consequently the investment is carried at cost less provision for impairment. 
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8. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
The subsidiaries held by the company and its subsidiaries are listed below:  

    Percentage of
   Cost of the held equity 

Name of subsidiaries, country of incorporation, Investments by group
place of operations and principal activities 2005 2004 2005 2004

    $’000 $’000 % %

Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd (a) 

  Singapore

  Distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 

  nutritional supplements, personal care 

  products and healthcare equipment 1,251 1,251 100 100

Avance Living Pte. Ltd. (a) 

  Singapore 

  Distribution of nutritional supplements, 

  personal care products and 

  healthcare equipment 4 4 100 100

Institute of BWL Pte. Ltd. (a) 

  Singapore 

  Provision of courses for beauty therapy.

  Inactive during the year 3 3 100 100

Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. (b) 

  Malaysia

  Import and distribution of cosmetics, 

  skin care, nutritional supplements, 

  personal care products and 

  healthcare equipment 1,753 1,753 70 70

BWL (Thailand) Company Limited (c) (h) 

  Thailand

  Import and distribution of cosmetics, 

  skin care, nutritional supplements, 

  personal care products and 

  healthcare equipment 11 11 49 49

Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd. (a)

  Singapore

  Investment holding company * * 70 70

Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (d) (e)

  People’s Republic of China

  Import and distribution of cosmetics 

  skin care, nutritional supplements, 

  personal care products and 

  healthcare equipment. Has not 

  commenced commercial operations. – – 70 70
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     Percentage of

   Cost of the held equity 
Name of subsidiaries, country of incorporation, Investments by group
place of operations and principal activities 2005 2004 2005 2004

Best World Lifestyle (HK) Company Limited (f)

  Hong Kong

  Distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 

  nutritional supplements, personal care 

  products and healthcare equipment 

  (Incorporated on 21 June 2005) * – 100 –

PT Best World Indonesia (g) 

  Indonesia

  Import and distribution of cosmetics 

  skin care, nutritional supplements, 

  personal care products and 

  healthcare equipment.

(Incorporated on 16 August 2005) 115 – 70 –

     3,137 3,022

(a) Audited by RSM Chio Lim, a member of RSM International. Chio Lim & Associates was a member of Horwath 

International until 10 January 2006.

(b) Audited by Horwath Malaysia, a member of Horwath International.

(c) Audited by Horwath (Thailand) Limited, a member of Horwath International.

(e) Held through Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd.

(f) Audited by Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited, a member of Horwath International

(g) Audited by RSM AAJ Associates, a member of RSM International.

(h) The group considers the company as subsidiary of the group as the group has management control over the 

company through a shareholders’ agreement

* Denotes amount less than $1,000.

9. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Unlisted equity shares at cost 651 651 651 651

Less costs written off (651) (651) (651) (651)

– – – –
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9. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)
     Percentage of

   Cost of the held equity 
Investments by group

place of operations and principal activities 2005 2004 2005 2004

Shanghai Best World Cosmetics Co., Ltd (a)

  People’s Republic of China

  Production and distribution of cosmetics 

  and skincare equipment. Dormant 651 651 – 60

  People’s Republic of China

  Distribution of natural nutritional and 

  healthcare products, disinfectants, 

  chemical products and the development, 

  production, sale and provision of 

  after-sales services of relevant 

  medical equipment. Dormant. – – – 50

     651 651

both companies have not renewed their business registration licenses, and have been dormant since 

2002. The company has obtained legal opinions from lawyers in the People’s Republic of China, and 

was advised that the companies are deemed to have been deregistered upon the non-renewal of their 

respective business licenses. 

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
    Freehold Freehold Plant and Leasehold
Group   land building equipment properties Total
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost:

At beginning of year 1 January 2004 847 400 2,380 – 3,627

Additions   – – 1,188 2,100 3,288

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries – – 317 – 317

Disposals  – – (1,275) – (1,275)

(36) (31) (67)

At end of year 31 December 2004 847 400 2,574 2,069 5,890
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     Freehold Freehold Plant and Leasehold

Group   land building equipment properties Total
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Accumulated depreciation:

At beginning of year 1 January 2004 – 88 1,407 – 1,495

Depreciation for the year – 8 390 3 401

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries – – 156 – 156

Disposals  – – (1,060) – (1,060)

At end of year 31 December 2004 – 96 881 3 980

Net book value:

At end of year 31 December 2004 847 304 1,693 2,066 4,910

Cost:

At beginning of year 1 January 2005 847 400 2,574 2,069 5,890

Additions   – – 2,082 – 2,082

Disposals  – – (390) – (390)

At end of year 31 December 2005 847 400 4,272 2,084 7,603

Accumulated depreciation:

At beginning of year 1 January 2005 – 96 881 3 980

Depreciation for the year – 8 640 2 650

Disposals  – – (256) – (256)

At end of year 31 December 2005  – 104 1,268 5 1,377

Net book value:

At end of year 31 December 2005 847 296 3,004 2,079 6,226

    Freehold Freehold Plant and
Company   land building equipment Total

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At beginning of year 1 January 2004 847 400 1,313 2,560

Additions   – – 409 409

Disposals  – – (592) (592)

At end of year 31 December 2004 847 400 1,130 2,377
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
    Freehold Freehold Plant and
Company   land building equipment Total

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Accumulated depreciation:

At beginning of year 1 January 2004 – 88 720 808

Depreciation for the year – 8 187 195

Disposals  – – (487) (487)

At end of year 31 December 2004 – 96 420 516

.

Net book value:

At end of year 31 December 2004 847 304 710 1,861

Cost:

At beginning of year 1 January 2005 847 400 1,130 2,377

Additions   – – 1,098 1,098

Disposals  – – (174) (174)

At end of year 31 December 2005 847 400 2,054 3,301

Accumulated depreciation:

At beginning of year 1 January 2005 – 96 420 516

Depreciation for the year – 8 265 273

Disposals  –   (100) (100)

At end of year 31 December 2005 – 104 585 689

Net book value:

At end of year 31 December 2005 847 296 1,469 2,612

The freehold land and building and leasehold properties are mortgaged to a bank to secure direct facilities 

11. GOODWILL
     Group

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Cost:

At beginning of year 320 –   

Arising from acquisition of subsidiary – –

At end of year  320 320

No amortisation was made for the goodwill in 2004 as the acquisition of additional interest in a subsidi-

ary was only completed in late December 2004. 
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11. GOODWILL (CONT’D)
Goodwill is allocated to cash–generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Each of those 

cash-generating units represents the group’s investment in each subsidiary as follows:

Name of subsidiaries: 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. 314 314

BWL (Thailand) Company Limited 6 6

Cost as at end of year 320 320

The goodwill was tested for impairment at the end of the year. An impairment loss is the amount by which 

the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit (“CGU’’) exceeds its recoverable amount. The 

recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell 

or its value in use. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on 

the value in use method. 

The value in use was determined by management. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations 

are as follows:

1. Estimated discount rates using pre-tax rates 9.0% for Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. and 

2. Growth rates based on industry growth  3.0%

forecasts and not exceeding the average 

long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

12. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
    Trade marks 
Group   and licenses

     
$’000

Cost:

At beginning of year 1 January 2004 18

Additions   52

At end of year 31 December 2004 70

Accumulated amortisation:

At beginning of year 1 January 2004 2

Amortisation for the year 7

At end of year 31 December 2004 9
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12. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)
    Trade marks 
Group   and licenses

     
$’000

Net book value:

At end of year 31 December 2004 61

Cost:

At beginning of year 1 January 2005 70

Additions   117

At end of year 31 December 2005 187

Accumulated amortisation:

At beginning of year 1 January 2005 9

Amortisation for the year 8

At end of year 31 December 2005 17

Net book value:

At end of year 31 December 2005 170

    Trade marks 
Company   and licenses

     
$’000

Cost:

At beginning of year 1 January 2004 18

Additions   52

At end of year 31 December 2004 70

Accumulated amortisation:

At beginning of year 1 January 2004 2

Amortisation for the year 7

At end of year 31 December 2004 9

Net book value:

At end of year 31 December 2004 61

Cost:

At beginning of year 1 January 2005 70

Additions   63

At end of year 31 December 2005 133
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12. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)
    Trade marks 
Company   and licenses

     
$’000

Accumulated amortisation:

At beginning of year 1 January 2005 9

Amortisation for the year 8

At end of year 31 December 2005 17

Net book value:

At end of year 31 December 2005 116

13. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Bank loans (secured) – 510 – 510

Bank overdraft (secured) – 101 – –

     – 611 – 510

The Group’s bank loans and overdrafts were secured by the legal mortgage of the company and sub-

The bank overdraft facilities bore interest rate at 5% per year.

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade payables

Outside parties and accrued liabilities 5,259 3,713 1,736 1,079

Subsidiaries (Notes 3 and 8) – – – 926

     5,259 3,713 1,736 2,005

Other payables:

Directors (Note 3) – 768 – 8

Subsidiaries (Note 3) – – 463 –

Other payables 453 361 201 83

     5,712 4,842 2,400 2,096
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT’D)
     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Analysis of above amounts denominated

  in foreign currencies:

United States dollars 391 603 391 603

Japanese yen  14 9 14 9

New Zealand dollars 31 – 31 –  

Indonesian rupiah 35 – – –  

Hong Kong dollars 32 – – –  

Malaysian ringgits 1,535 1,002 – –  

Thailand bahts 33 52 – –

The average credit period granted to the group by suppliers is about 30 days (2004 : 30 days).

15. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Bank loans (secured) 1,363 1,421 488 519

The bank loans (secured) are repayable as follows:

Current portion 74 83 34 29

Non-current portion 1,289 1,338 454 490

     1,363 1,421 488 519

The non-current portion is repayable as follows:

Due within 2 to 5 years 320 345 145 116

After 5 years  969 993 309 374

Total non-current portion 1,289 1,338 454 490

Analysis of the above amount 

  denominated in foreign currency:

Malaysian ringgits 245 252 – –  
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15. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
The exposure of the borrowings to interest rate charges and the contractual repricing dates at the bal-

ance sheet dates are as follows:

Below 6 months 37 41 17 14

Within 6 to 12 months 37 42 17 15

Within 2 to 5 years 320 345 145 116

Over 5 years 969 993 309 374

Total                            1363 1421 488 519

the legal mortgage of the company and a subsidiary’s properties. The bank loans are repayable within

15 to 20 years from May 1996 and December 2004. The interest rates ranged from 3.5% to 4.25% per 

year. The bank loans in Malaysian ringgits are repayable within 15 years from 31 May 2004. The book 

value of long-term debt approximate the fair value.

16.  FINANCE LEASES

     Minimum Finance Present
Group   payments charges value

     $’000 $’000 $’000

2005

Minimum lease payments payable:

Due within one year 166 (26) 140

Due within 2 to 5 years 644 (100) 544

Due after 5 years 129 (21) 108

Total    939 (147) 792

2004   

Minimum lease payments payable:

Due within one year 107 (15) 92

Due within 2 to 5 years 408 (56) 352

Due after 5 years 154 (21) 133

Total    669 (92) 577



78
Best World Annual Report 2005

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

16.  FINANCE LEASES (CONT’D)
     Minimum Finance Present

Company   payments charges value

     $’000 $’000 $’000

2005

Minimum lease payments payable:

Due within one year 98 (16) 82

Due within 2 to 5 years 384 (64)  320

Due after 5 years 122 (22) 100

Total    604 (102) 502

     Minimum Finance Present
Company   payments charges value

     $’000 $’000 $’000

2004

Minimum lease payments payable:

Due within one year 53 (8) 45

Due within 2 to 5 years 207 (29) 178

Due after 5 years 77 (10) 67

Total    337 (47) 290

302

and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments. All leases obligations are 

denominated in Singapore dollar. The fair value of the lease obligations approximates to their carrying 

17. SHARE CAPITAL
     Number Issued
     of shares share capital

     $’000 $’000

Ordinary shares:

Balance at beginning of year 1 January 2004 1,845 1,845

Issue of shares at $1.00 each (a) 1,155 1,155

     3,000 3,000
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D)
     Number Issued
     of shares share capital

     $’000 $’000

Consolidation of shares (b) 1,000 3,000

Subdivision of shares (c) 100,000 3,000

Issue of shares at $0.30 each (d) 25,000 750

Balance at end of year 31 December 2004 125,000 3,750

Issue of bonus shares (e) 25,000 750

Issue of shares at $0.57 each (f) 15,000 450

Balance at end of year 31 December 2005 165,000 4,950

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the company:

(a) issued bonus shares of 1,155,000 ordinary shares by way of capitalisation of $1,155,000 from the 

(b) consolidated 3 ordinary shares in the issued and paid-up share capital of the company into 1 

ordinary share each;

(c) sub-divided each ordinary share in the authorised and issued and paid-up share capital of the 

company into 100 ordinary shares; and

(d) issued 25,000,000 ordinary shares of at $0.30 per share for cash pursuant to the initial public offering 

of the company’s shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, the company:

(e) issued 25,000,000 new ordinary shares by way of a bonus issue on the basis of 1 bonus share 

for every 5 existing ordinary shares by way of capitalisation of $750,000 from the share premium 

account; and 

(f) issued 15,000,000 new ordinary shares in the capital of the company for cash at $0.57 each pursuant 

to a placement exercise. 

With the changes to the Companies Act, Cap 50, effective from 30 January 2006, there is the removal

of the concept of par value and authorised capital and there is no share premium account. The ordinary 

18. REVENUE
     Group 

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Sale of goods  55,098 31,007
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

19.  FINANCIAL INCOME AND (EXPENSE)
     Group 

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Bad debts written off – trade receivables – (3)

Foreign exchange transaction gains/(losses) (63) 13

Interest income 151 22

Interest expense (70) (63)

     18 ( 31)

Presented in the income statement as:

Financial income 151 35

Financial expense (133) (66)

Financial income and (expense) net 18 ( 31)

20. OTHER CREDITS/(CHARGES)
     Group 

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Plant and equipment written off (15) –

(Loss)/gain on disposal of plant and equipment (125) 22

Provision for inventory (56) (18)

     (196) 4

21. ITEMS IN THE INCOME STATEMENT

item includes the following charges:

     Group 

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Non audit fee to auditors of the company 11 7

Non audit fee to other auditors – 1

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
     Group 

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

4,205 2,557

229 203

4,434 2,760
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23. INCOME TAX 
     Group 

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Current    2,752 1,453

Deferred    81 42

Total tax expense 2,833 1,495

The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the 

differences:

     Group 

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

11,755 6,834

Income tax expense at the statutory rate 2,351 1,367

Non-allowable (taxable) items 299 (229)

Tax exemptions (21) (21)

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance 32 175

Reductions in tax rates – 12

Over provision in prior years (23) (3)

Effect of different tax rates in different countries 186 59

Other items less than 3% each 9 135

Total income tax expense 2,833 1,495

The net deferred tax amount in the balance sheet is as follows:

     Net change
   in consolidated

    Balance sheet income statement
Group  2005 2004 2005 2004

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred tax liabilities:

Excess of net book value of plant and equipment (165) (86) (79) (46)

Total deferred tax liabilities (165) (86) (79) (46)

Deferred tax assets:

Tax loss carryforwards 176 160 16 160

Unabsorbed wear and tear allowances 33 10 23 10

Other temporary differences – 9 (9) 9

Deferred tax assets allowance (207) (175) (32) (175)

Total deferred tax assets 2 4 (2) 4

Net total of deferred tax liabilities (163) (82) (81) (42)
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

23. INCOME TAX (CONT’D)
Presented in the balance sheet as follows:

     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred tax liabilities (165) (86) (117) (61)

Deferred tax assets 2 4 – –

Net position  (163) (82) (117) (61)

which the unused tax loss carryforwards can be utilised. The realisation of the future income tax ben-

offset against the above tax loss carryforwards, such provision for deferred tax will be required to be 

set up when the tax losses are utilised in the future. The deferred tax amount are not expected to be 

used within one year.

There is no income tax consequences of dividends to shareholders of the company.

24. DIVIDENDS
     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

Interim dividend paid of 0.5 cents net of income tax per share – 625

Final one-tier tax scheme dividend paid of 0.231 cents per share 289 –

Final dividend paid of 0.069 cents net of tax per share 86 –

Interim one-tier tax scheme dividend paid of 1.0 cents per share 1,500 –

     1,875 625

share and a special tax exempt dividend 1.0 cents per share totalling $2,640,000 be paid to sharehold-

to approval by shareholders at the next annual general meeting and has not been included as a liability 

-

sue at the balance sheet date and including the new shares, if any, issued up to the date the dividend 

becomes payable.
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25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

weighted number of shares in issue during the year.

     2005 2004
    $’000 $’000

The calculation of the earnings per share is based 

  on the following:

  of the company 8,464 5,039

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares after 

  for the purposes of basic and diluted 

  earnings per share 153,750,000 137,500,000

26. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
2004

The company acquired 100% of Avance Living Pte. Ltd. (“Avance”) and Institute of BWL Pte. Ltd. 

(“IBWL”), 60% of Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. (“BWLSB”) and 49% of BWL Thailand Co., Ltd (“BWL 

Thailand”) with effect from 1 January 2004 as disclosed in Note 8. The transaction was accounted for 

by the purchase method of accounting.

The fair values of net assets acquired are as follows:

     BWL
     BWLSB Avance IBWL Thailand Total
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,113 9 1 22 1,145

Trade receivables 399 136 – – 535

Other receivables 16 26 5 – 47

Inventories  67 62 – – 129

Plant and equipment 135 26 – – 161

Trade payables and accrued liabilities (627) (249) (3) – (879)

Other payables (288) – – – (288)

Income tax payable – (6) – – (6)

Minority interest (325) – – (11) (336)

Translation  (1) – – – (1)

Consideration  489 4 3 11 507

Less cash taken over (1,113) (9) (1) (22) (1,145)

(11) (638)
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

27. OPERATING LEASE PAYMENT COMMITMENTS
At the balance sheet date the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating 

leases are as follows:

     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Not later than one year 736 249 197 161

887 11 243 –

Rental for the year 537 420 253 169

-

tion clause but the amount of the rent increase is not to exceed a certain percentage. Such increases 

are not included in the above amounts.

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Estimated amounts committed at the balance sheet date for future capital expenditure but not recognised 

     Group Company

     2005 2004 2005 2004
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Authorised and contracted for 2,330 545 – 60

Authorised but not yet contracted for 2,673 10 2,673 10

Vigor Acquisition Agreement to pay a consideration of not more than RMB 20 million (S$4.2 million) for 

the acquisition of product licenses and inventories in relation to the Vigor Acquisition Agreement. As at 

31 December 2005, the group has paid RMB 6.61 million (S$1.36 million) under the Vigor Acquisition 

Agreement. The remaining balance payable under the contract was determined to be RMB 11.05 mil-

lion (S$2.33 million). Consequently, the group’s commitment as at 31 December 2005 under the Vigor 

Acquisition Agreement is approximately RMB 11.05 million (S$2.33 million).

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Details of subsequent event relating to the Vigor Acquisition Agreement and the increase in paid up capital of 
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30.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENTS
For management purposes, the group is currently organised into three market segments and form the 

basis on which the group reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

(a) Direct Selling segment. This segment comprises sales to customers through direct selling channel 

in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Hong Kong and Thailand;

(b) Retail segment. This segment comprises sales to retail customers through retailers in Singapore; 

and

(c) Export segment. This segment comprises the sales to overseas distributors.

The following tables present the segment for each of the two years covered under this report:

Business segments
  Group

   2004
   $ $

     Direct    Direct
  Selling Retail Export  Elimination Total Selling Retail Export  Elimination Total

Revenue

External 

  sales and 

  services 54,290 176 632 – 55,098 29,872 299 836 – 31,007

Inter-segment 

  revenue 22,505 109 – (22,614) – 12,430 75 – (12,505) –

Total revenue 

from operations     55,098     31,007

Segment

  results 11,997 (96)  32 11,933 7,171 (468) 158  6,861

Other credits/

  (charges) (192) (1) (3)  (196) 6 (3) 1  4

  operations     11,737     6,865

Financial income     151     35

Financial expense     (133)     (66)

  income tax     11,755     6,834

Income tax 

  expenses     (2,833)     (1,495)

  income tax     8,922     5,339
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

30.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENTS (CONT’D)
Business segments (Cont’d)
  Group

   2005 2004
   $ $

     Direct    Direct
   Selling Retail Export  Elimination Total Selling Retail Export  Elimination Total

Other information:

Depreciation 632 10 8  650 378 11 12  401

Amortisation 8 – –  8 7 – –   7

Property, plant and 

  equipment

  additions –

  unallocated     2,082      3,288

Intangible assets 

  additions –

  Unallocated     117     52

Balance sheet

Segment assets 878 9,904 281  11,063 3,012 88 1,254  4,354

Unallocated assets     29,027     19,059

Total Group assets     40,090     23,413

Unallocated liabilities     10,024     8,824

Total Group liabilities     10,024     8,824

Geographical segments

The group’s operations are located in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Hong Kong and Thailand. The 

group’s direct selling operates in Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, Hong Kong and Indonesia. The retail 

division operates in Singapore. The export division operates in Singapore and sells to customers located 

in countries such as Thailand, Malaysia, Hong Kong and Brunei.

The following table provides an analysis of the group revenue by geographical markets which are ana-

lysed based on the location of each individual customer:

     Sales revenue by 
     Geographical market 

    2005 2004
     $’000 $’000

Singapore  17,987 17,754

Malaysia   22,971 10,705

Other countries (1) 14,140 2,548

     55,098 31,007

(1) Other countries comprise mainly Thailand, Hong Kong and Indonesia.
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30.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENTS (CONT’D) 
Geographical segments (Cont’d)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to property, plant 

and equipment analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

     Additions to 

     
Carrying amount of property, plant Additions to

     
Segment assets and equipment intangible assets

     

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

     

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Singapore   32,217 19,172 1,632 2,165 63 52

Malaysia   6,749 4,130 296 1,058 – –

Other countries 1,124 111 154 65 54 –

     40,090 23,413 2,082 3,288 117 52

31. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
For the year ended 31 December 2005 the following Singapore Financial Reporting Standards were 

FRS 1 (revised 2004) Presentation of Financial Statements

FRS 2 (revised 2004) Inventories

FRS 8 (revised 2004) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

FRS 10 (revised 2004) Events after the Balance Sheet Date

FRS 16 (revised 2004) Property, Plant and Equipment

FRS 17 (revised 2004) Leases

FRS 21 (revised 2004) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

FRS 24 (revised 2004) Related Party Disclosures

FRS 27 (revised 2004) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

FRS 28 (revised 2004) Investments in Associates

FRS 32 (revised 2004) Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

FRS 33 (revised 2004) Earnings per Share 

FRS 36 (revised 2004) Impairment of Assets

FRS 38 (revised 2004) Intangible Assets

FRS 39 (revised 2004) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

FRS 41 Agriculture (*)

FRS 102 Share-based Payments

FRS 103 Business Combinations 

FRS 104 Insurance Contracts (*)

FRS 105 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (*)

(*) Not applicable to the entity.

Adoption of the above new standards has resulted in some changes in the detailed application of the 

ever, the new standards affect the results for the current or prior periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2005

32.  FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The following Singapore Financial Reporting Standards that have been issued will be effective in future. 

The transfer to the new standards from the effective dates is not expected to have a material impact 

FRS 40 Investment Property, effective from 1.1.2007

FRS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources effective from 1.1.2006 (*)

FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures from 1.1.2007 

(*) Not applicable to the entity.

33. RECLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPARATIVE FIGURES

    After Before

    $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade and other receivables 4,923 – 4,923

Trade receivables – 4,354 (4,354)

Other receivables – 569 (569)

Trade and other payables (4,842) – (4,842)

Trade payables – (3,713) 3,713

Other payables – (1,129) 1,129

Finance income (35) – (35)

Finance expense 66 – 66

Other credits/(charges) (4) (14) 10

Finance costs  – 63 (63)

Other income  (68) (90) 22

     After Before

    $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade and other receivables 3,702 – 3,702

Trade receivables – 1,848 (1,848)

Other receivables – 1,854 (1,854)

Trade and other payables (2,096) – (2,096)

Trade payables – (2,005) 2,005

Other payables – (91) 91
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Major Properties Held For Investment

   
Location  Description Existing Use Tenure of Land

37 Kallang Pudding Road 10-Storey Packaging Freehold

Block B Tong Lee Building Building facility/Warehouse land

Block 726 Ang Mo Kio 2-Storey Business Centre Leasehold

Singapore 560726 on 1 october

   2079

Bandar Baru Seri Petaling Building Business Centre land expiring

57000, Kuala Lumpur, on 5 April

Malaysia  2078
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Issued & fully paid-up capital – S$4,950,000

Class of Shares   – Ordinary

Number of Shares   – 165,000,000

Voting Rights of Ordinary Shareholders – On show of hands : 1 vote for each member

  On a poll : 1 vote for each ordinary share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS      
     No. of No. of 
Size of Shareholdings  Shareholders % Shares %

1 – 999    66 7.43 22,951 0.01

1,000 – 10,000  488 54.89 2,103,948 1.28

10,001 – 1,000,000 315 35.43 21,884,700 13.26

1,000,001 and above 20 2.25 140,988,401 85.45

Total    889 100.00 165,000,000 100

SHAREHOLDING HELD IN HANDS OF PUBLIC      
Based on the information provided to the Company, as at 13 March 2006, approximately 38.93% of the 

issued ordinary shares of the Company is held by the public and therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual 

is complied with.        

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS   
Name No. of shares %

1. D2 Investment Pte. Ltd.(1) 60,000,000 36.36

2. Dora Hoan Beng Mui (1) 17,331,600 10.50

3. Doreen Tan Nee Moi (1) 17,331,600 10.50

4. HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd 8,361,000 5.07

5. DBS Nominees Pte Ltd 5,748,400 3.49

6. Gay Chee Cheong 5,600,000 3.39

7. Huang Ban Chin(2) 4,800,000 2.91

8. Phillip Securities Pte Ltd 2,583,000 1.57

9. Royal Bank of Canada (Asia) Ltd 2,292,000 1.39

10. Hong Leong Finance Nominees Pte Ltd 2,191,400 1.33

11. CIMB-GK Securities Pte. Ltd. 1,933,001 1.17

12. Kim Eng Securities Pte. Ltd. 1,820,000 1.10

13. Goh Bak Heng 1,600,000 0.97

14. Citibank Consumer Nominees Pte Ltd 1,512,000 0.92

15. Goh Thiam Poh 1,500,000 0.91

16. Lin Chiu-Nan 1,500,000 0.91

17. Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Securities Pte Ltd 1,500,000 0.91

Statistics of Shareholdings
As At 13 March 2006
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TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (CONT’D)   
Name No. of shares %

18. SBS Nominees Pte Ltd(2) 1,200,000 0.73

19. OCBC Securities Private Ltd 1,126,000 0.68

20. Wee Kheng Hoe Jason 1,058,400 0.64

Total   140,988,401 85.45

     

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS  
as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders

     Direct Deemed
Name of Substantial Shareholder Interest Interest Total %

  

Hoan Beng Mui Dora 17,331,600 60,000,000 77,331,600 46.87

Tan Nee Moi Doreen 17,331,600 60,000,000 77,331,600 46.87

D2 Investment Pte. Ltd. 60,000,000 34,663,200 94,663,200 57.37

  

(1) Dr Hoan Beng Mui Dora and Dr Tan Nee Moi Doreen are directors and shareholders of D2 Investment Pte. Ltd. and 

they are each deemed to be interested in the shares held by D2 Investment Pte. Ltd.  

    

(2) Mr Huang Ban Chin is deemed to have an indirect interest in 1,200,000 shares held through SBS Nominees Pte. Ltd.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company will be held 

10:00 a.m. to transact the following businesses:

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Best World International Limited (Reg No: 199006030Z)

Resolution 1

Resolution 2

Resolution 3

Resolution 4

Resolution 5

Resolution 6

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive and consider the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 

31 December 2005 and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

share and a special one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 1.0 cents per ordinary share for the 

year ended 31 December 2005.

3. To re-elect the following Directors, each of whom will retire by rotation pursuant to the 

Articles of Association of the Company and who, being eligible, will offer themselves 

for re-election:

(a) Mr Lee Sen Choon (Article 89)

(b) Mr Huang Ban Chin (Article 89)

[Mr Lee Sen Choon will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as Chair-

man of the Audit Committee and will be considered independent for the purposes of Rule 

704(8) of the Listing Manual of The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.]

4. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of S$84,000 for the year ended 31 December 

2005. (2004: S$33,000)

their remuneration.
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Ordinary Resolutions:

Resolution 76. Ordinary Resolution: Authority to allot and issue shares up to 50% of the 

Company’s issued share capital.

“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and the listing rules of 

the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, authority be and is hereby given 

to the directors of the Company to allot and issue shares and convertible securities in 

the Company (whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) at any time and from time 

to time thereafter to such persons and upon such terms and conditions and for such 

the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued pursuant to this 

Resolution, does not exceed 50% of the issued share capital of the Company, of which 

the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued other than on 

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company does not exceed 20% of the 

issued share capital of the Company and for the purpose of this Resolution, the issued 

share capital shall be the Company’s issued share capital at the time this Resolution is 

convertible securities or share options or vesting of share awards which are outstanding 

or subsisting at the time this Resolution is passed and any subsequent consolidation or 

sub-division of the Company’s shares) and unless revoked or varied by the Company in 

general meeting, such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next 

Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General 

Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier.”

[See explanatory note (i)]

7. To transact any other business which may be properly transacted at an Annual 

General Meeting.

Explanatory Notes:

(i) Resolution 7, if passed, will empower the directors from the date of the above 

Meeting until the date of the next Annual General Meeting, to allot and issue shares 

and convertible securities in the Company. The number of shares and convertible 

securities which the directors may allot and issue under this Resolution would not 

exceed 50 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company at the time this 

Resolution is passed. For allotment and issue of shares and convertible securities 

other than on a pro-rata basis to all shareholders, the aggregate number of shares 

and convertible securities to be allotted and issued shall not exceed 20 per cent of 

the total issued share capital of the Company at the time this Resolution is passed.
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NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company will 

exempt dividend (the “Final Dividend”) and special one-tier tax-exempt dividend (the “Special Dividend”) to 

be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 25 April 2006.

Duly completed registrable transfers in respect of the shares in the Company received up to the close of 

business at 5:00 p.m. on 8 May 2006 by the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Barbinder Share Registration 

will be registered to determine members’ entitlements to the Final Dividend and Special Dividend. Members 

whose Securities Accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Ltd are credited with shares in the Company 

as at 5:00 p.m. on 8 May 2006 will be entitled to such proposed Final Dividend and Special Dividend.

The proposed Final Dividend and Special Dividend, if approved at the Annual General Meeting will be paid 

on 22 May 2006.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Low Mei Mei Maureen

Company Secretary

Singapore

Date: 7 April 2006

Proxies:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting may appoint not more than two proxies 

to attend and vote instead of him.

2. Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each 

proxy in the instrument appointing the proxies. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

attorney duly authorized.

General Meeting.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Best World International Limited (Reg No: 199006030Z)
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I/We

of

being a member/members of Best World International Limited (the “Company”) hereby appoint

NRIC/ Proportion of 
Name Address Passport Number Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

NRIC/ Proportion of 
Name Address Passport Number Shareholdings (%)

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll 
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 480 Lorong 6 Toa Payoh, HDB Hub, East Wing, 

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against 

Annual General Meeting.)

No. Resolutions For Against

  ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and consider Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports and Audited 
Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2005.

one-tier tax-exempt dividend.

3. To re-elect Director – Mr Lee Sen Choon

4. To re-elect Director – Mr Huang Ban Chin

5. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees.

6. To re-appoint Messrs RSM Chio Lim as Auditors and authorise the Directors 

  SPECIAL BUSINESS

7. To authorise Directors to allot and issue shares and convertible securities 
pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50

Dated this                 day of                 2006

Signature(s) of member(s) or common seal

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

IMPORTANT

1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy 
the Company’s shares, this Annual Report is forwarded 
to them at the request of their CPF Approved Nominees 
and is sent sole FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors 
and shall be ineffective for all intents and pruposes if 
used or purported to be used by them.

Total number of Shares held



NOTES :
1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in 

insert that number of shares. If you have shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, 

you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository 

Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate 

number of shares. If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares 

held by you.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to 

appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of 

the Company.

3. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to 

be represented by each proxy.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or his attorney 

duly authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a cor-

poration, it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney or duly 

5. A corporation which is a member of the Company may authorise by resolution of its directors or other 

in accordance with its Articles of Association and Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if 

later than 48 hours before the time set for the Annual General Meeting.

improperly completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from 

the case of members of the Company whose shares are entered against their names in the Depository 

are not shown to have shares entered against their names in the Depository Register at 48 hours before 

Limited to the Company.

Proxy Form
Best World International Limited (Reg No: 199006030Z)






